

Group

# National Instrument 43-101Technical Report

Sungold Project Burchell Lake Area, Ontario, Canada Thunder Bay Mining Division, NTS 53B07 Geology Technical Report

# UTM: Zone 16, 566303m E, 5854885m N, NAD83

Prepared For

Strike Copper Corp.

By

#### Alan Aubut P.Geo.

# July 29, 2021

PO Box 304, Nipigon, Ontario, POT 2J0 Tel: (807) 887-2300 Email: <u>sibley.basin.group@gmail.com</u>

# **Table of Contents**

Table of 0	Contents	. i			
List of Fig	List of Figuresii				
List of Ta	blesi	iii			
1. Sum	1mary	1			
2. Intro	oduction	2			
2.1	Units and Currency	2			
2.2	Glossary and Abbreviation of Terms	2			
3. Relia	ance on Other Experts	5			
4. Prop	perty Description and Location	6			
4.1.	Property History and Underlying Agreements	6			
4.2.	Parties to the Agreements	7			
5. Acce	essibility, Climate, Local Resources, Infrastructure and Physiography	0			
5.1.	Accessibility1	0			
5.2.	Climate	0			
5.3.	Local resources and Infrastructure1	0			
5.4.	Physiography1	0			
6. Hist	ory1	2			
6.1.	General1	2			
6.2.	Sungold Area History1	2			
7. Geo	ological Setting and Mineralisation1	.5			
7.1.	Regional geology1	.5			
7.1.3	1. Precambrian Basement Complex	.5			
7.1.1	1.1. Northern Mafic Belt (NMB)	.7			
7.1.1	1.2. Central Felsic Belt (CFB)	.7			
7.1.3	1.3. Central Mafic Belt (CMB)	.7			
7.1.1	1.4. Southern Mafic Belt (SMB)	.7			
7.1.3	1.5. Powell Lake Granite	8			
7.1.3	1.6. Myrt Lake Batholith	8			
7.1.2	2. Quaternary Cover	.8			
7.2.	Local Geology	8			
7.2.2	1. Wye Lake Geology	8			
7.2.2	2. Hamlin Lake Geology	0			
7.2.3	3. Faulting	0			
7.3.	Mineralisation	0			
8. Dep	posit Types	1			
8.1.	VMS	1			
8.2.	IOCG	3			
9. Expl	loration2	5			
9.1.	Strike Copper Exploration Work	5			
9.1.1.	Prospecting and Trenching	5			
9.1.2	9.1.2. Ground Magnetic Survey				
9.1.3	9.1.3. 3D Modelling of Diamond Drilling				
10. Drill	10. Drilling				
10.1	Överview	1			
9.1.1. 9.1.2. 9.1.3. 10. Drill 10.1	Prospecting and Trenching	5 8 9			

10.2 Wye Lake Drilling	31
10.3 Hamlin Lake Drilling	31
11. Sample Preparation, Analyses and Security	34
12. Data Verification	35
13. Mineral Processing and Metallurgical Testing	36
14. Mineral Resource Estimates	37
15. Mineral Reserve Estimates	38
16. Mining Methods	39
17. Recovery Methods	40
18. Project Infrastructure	41
19. Market Studies and Contracts	42
20. Environmental Studies, Permitting and Social or Community Impact	43
21. Capital and Operating Costs	44
22. Economic Analysis	45
23. Adjacent Properties	46
23.1 Huronian Gold Mine	46
23.2 Moss Lake Gold deposit	46
24. Other Relevant Data and Information	49
25. Interpretation and Conclusions	50
26. Recommendations	51
26.1 Phase 1 Recommendations	51
26.2 Phase 2 Recommendations	51
27. References	53
Certificate of Qualifications	55
Appendix 1 – Claims Summary	56

# **List of Figures**

Figure 4.1 - Map showing the location of the Sungold property6
Figure 4.2 - Claim map of the Hamlin Lake Area8
Figure 4.3 - Map of Sungold property claims as of April 16, 2021
Figure 7.1 – Map showing the main geological domains15
Figure 7.2 – Geology Map of the Sungold Property area with significant deposits and occurrences. NMB -
Northern Mafic Belt, CFB – Central Felsic Belt, CMB - Central Mafic Belt, SMB – Southern
Mafic Belt
Figure 7.2 - Geological map
Figure 8.1 - Idealized VMS deposit showing a strataform lens of massive sulphide overlying a discordant
stringer sulphide zone within an envelope of altered rock (alteration pipe). Modified from
Gibson et al., 2007)21
Figure 8.2 - Schematic illustrating the relationship between subvolcanic intrusions, subsea-floor
alteration, syn-volcanic faulting and the generation of VMS deposits (modified after Galley,
1993 and Franklin et al., 2005)22
Figure 8.3 - Schematic illustrating the relationship between fluid flow derived from intrusions resulting in
the formation of IOCG mineralisation (Niiranen, 2005)

Figure 10.1 – Summary map showing the aeromagnetic survey completed in 2005 along with all	
historical drill collars completed to date	26
Figure 10.2 – Summary map showing the airborne electromagnetic VTEM survey completed in 2005	;
along with all historical drill collars completed to date.	27
Figure 10.3 - High-resolution magnetic total field map	29
Figure 10.4 – Long section view looking to the NW of the copper mineralisation at Hamlin Lake. The	red
arrow shows the SW trending plunge of the mineralisation	30
Figure 10.3 – Summary of drill hole locations Wye Lake	32
Figure 10.4 – Summary of drill hole locations Hamlin Lake. Black line is the property boundary	33
Figure 23.1 - Location of significant gold deposits in the vicinity of the Sungold property	47

# **List of Tables**

Table 9.1 – Summary of surface sampling done by Strike Copper in 2020	28
Table 10.1 - Summary highlights of Freewest drill results at Wye Lake (all lengths downhole)	31
Table 10.2 - Summary highlights of Xstrata drill results at Hamlin Lake (all lengths downhole)	31
Table 26.1 - Proposed exploration budget	52

# 1. Summary

The Sungold project is in North-western Ontario, approximately 110 kilometres west of the city of Thunder bay and 31 kilometres southwest of the village of Kashabowie. In April of 2019 Strike Copper Corp. acquired the property which consists of 293 boundary and standard cell claims covering approximately 5,800 ha.

The property is underlain primarily by felsic and mafic metavolcanics intruded by late granite bodies. Through the length of the property felsic rocks are the most extensive and consist of massive to quartzphyric rhyolite and with silica-rich fragments. The Wye Lake area is underlain by a lower felsic assemblage that hosts the Wye Lake VMS occurrence and an upper felsic assemblage. Both overlie a layered igneous complex that offers potential for hosting Ni-Cu mineralisation. At the northeast end of the property the metavolcanic rocks are intruded by a tongue of the Powell Lake granite and are host to a breccia unit with low-grade IOCG mineralisation that has been traced about 1.2 km along strike, is about 120 to 175 metres in width and has been traced down to a maximum depth of about 300 metres below the surface. It is still open to depth.

The exploration work done to date, especially the VTEM survey resulted in the discovery of the Wye Lake VMS mineralisation and the Hamlin Lake IOCG mineralisation. Several other areas on the property offer excellent potential and have not been fully tested.

The geological package has shown itself to be well mineralised with geology very conducive for hosting potentially economic VMS and IOCG mineralisation. There is also potential for hosting gold and Ni-Cu mineralisation.

It is recommended detailed ground geophysical surveying and geological mapping be done to focus future drilling, especially for the IOCG mineralisation at Hamlin Lake.

# **2. Introduction**

The Sungold project was acquired by Strike Copper Corp. in April of 2019. The purpose of this report is to document the geology of, and previous work done on the Sungold project. Sibley Basin Group Geological Consulting Services Ltd. (SBG) was retained by Mr. Charles Elbourne, President and CEO of Strike Copper Corp. to prepare this report.

Alan Aubut, P.Geo., on behalf of SBG, visited the Sungold property on February 20, 2021, which is the subject of this report. During this visit the collar for hole HAM-11-75 was located. As there is no active exploration and the property was snow-covered little else could be done.

A review of the available data by the authour showed no issues and as such the data is considered valid, representative, and suitable to be used as background for this report.

# 2.1 Units and Currency

Unless otherwise stated:

- All units of measurement in the Report are in the metric system
- All currency amounts in this Report are stated in Canadian dollars ("CA\$")
- Gold (Au) and Silver (Ag) assay values are reported in grams per tonne (g/t)
- Copper (Cu) and Zinc (Zn) assay values are reported in percent (%)

Grid coordinates for the Block Models are given in the UTM NAD 83 datum, Zone 16. Maps are either in UTM coordinates or in the latitude/longitude system.

# 2.2 Glossary and Abbreviation of Terms

Abbreviation	Meaning
\$ and CA\$	currency of Canada
Ag	silver
Au	gold
Ва	Barium
°C	Degrees Celsius
Ca	Calcium
Со	Cobalt
Cu	copper

Abbreviation	Meaning
DDH or ddh	diamond drill hole
AEM	Airborne electromagnetic
Ag	Silver
Au	Gold
F	Fluorine
Fe	Iron
g	gram
g/t	grams per tonne
ha	hectare
IOCG	Iron Oxide Copper Gold
К	Potassium
kg	kilogram
km	kilometre
m	metre
mm	millimetre
Ma	millions of years
Mt	millions of tonnes
Ν	north
Na	Sodium
NSR	net smelter return
NTS	national topographic system
ODM	Ontario Department of Mines
OGS	Ontario Geological Survey
OZ.	Ounces (1 troy oz. = 31.1034 g)

Abbreviation	Meaning
P. Geo.	professional geoscientist
Pb	lead
ppm	parts per million
QP	Qualified Person
REE	Rare Earth Elements
S	sulphur
SBG	Sibley Basin Group
SG	Specific Gravity
t	tonne (metric)
U	Uranium
US\$	United States Dollar
UTM	Universal Transverse Mercator
VLF-EM	very low-frequency electromagnetic survey
VMS	Volcanogenic massive sulphide
Zn	zinc

# **3. Reliance on Other Experts**

SBG did not rely on any experts that are not considered Qualified Persons under National Instrument 43-101.



# **4. Property Description and Location**

Figure 4.1 - Map showing the location of the Sungold property.

The Sungold property is held under option by Strike Copper Corp.

The property is situated in the Thunder Bay Mining Division in NTS area 52B07 and is located at about UTM 662,045 m E and 5,370,850 m N (Zone 15, NAD83) and is approximately 110 kilometres west of Thunder Bay (see Figure 4.1). The property consists of 293 standard and boundary cell claims covering an area of approximately 5,800 hectares. The claims were converted from ground-staked claims to mapbased cell claims in April 2018 because of the modernization of the Mining Act. The status of all the claims is presented in Appendix 1. Figure 4.1 shows the location of the property, Figure 4.2 shows the property relative to all other claims in the immediate area and Figure 4.3 shows all the claim cells.

# 4.1.Property History and Underlying Agreements

The property originally consisted of 2 legacy (ground-staked) claims consisting of 6 units covering approximately 96 hectares:

• 1n 1996 Russ Kwiatkowski and Ed Kukkee staked the original Sungold claims.

- In 2002 Freewest Resources Canada Inc. (Freewest) signed an option agreement with Russ Kwiatkowski and Ed Kukkee for their Sungold prospect located approximately at UTM 660,480 m E and 5,368,300 m N (Zone 15, NAD83). The terms of the agreement included a 2 km buffer zone in which any additional claims staked would become part of the agreement. The terms were cash payments over 4 years totalling \$150,000 and 100,000 shares in Freewest. The vendors retained a 3% Net Smelter Returns (NSR) royalty with Freewest retaining the right to purchase 1.5% for \$500,000 for each 0.5% increment. An advance royalty of \$20,000 per year after exercise of the option was due that could be paid in a combination of Freewest shares and cash.
- In 2006, with the option signed in 2001 being fully exercised, the agreement was modified by granting an NSR of 0.5% to all claims staked outside the originally agreed 2 km buffer zone. Freewest retained the right to buy out that royalty for \$500,000. This covered the rest of the current property from Hamlin Lake to the northeast, down to Home Lake to the southwest.
- In November of 2009 Cliffs Natural Resources (Cliffs) acquired Freewest Resources.
  Subsequently all interests acquired were transferred to Cliffs Chromite Ontario Ltd.
- On April 17, 2015, Noront Muketei Minerals Ltd. (Noront), a wholly owned subsidiary of Noront Resources Ltd., completed the purchase of Cliffs Chromite Far North, thus also acquiring the Sungold project. This was accomplished via a loan agreement with Franco-Nevada GLW Holdings Corp. (Franco-Nevada).
- On April 10, 2018, the claims were converted to cell claims.
- On July 5, 2018, Noront transferred title for the Sungold property to Kwiatkowski and Kukkee as compensation for all past due advance royalty payments.
- On July 24, 2018, Franco-Nevada entered into an agreement with Kwiatkowski and Kukkee whereby Franco-Nevada acquired a 2% NSR royalty over and above the royalty held by Kwiatkowski and Kukkee on all the Sungold claims originally held by Freewest.
- On October 26, 2018, Kwiatkowski and Kukkee, with agreement by Franco-Nevada, optioned the property to InterBanc Capital Corp. (InterBanc) in return for 1,500,000 shares of Strike Copper Corp. (Strike Copper) contingent on Strike Copper obtaining a listing on the Canadian Securities Exchange within two years.
- On April 2, 2019, InterBanc amended the previous option agreement by having Strike Copper issuing 10,000,000 of its shares to InterBanc.
- On June 28, 2019, InterBanc transferred its interest in the property to Strike Copper.

# 4.2.Parties to the Agreements

Strike Copper Corp. is a junior exploration company.

Noront Resources Ltd. is a junior exploration company that acquired all the interests previously held by Cliffs Chromite Far North Inc., including the former assets of Freewest Resources Canada Inc.

Franco-Nevada GLW Holdings Corp. was formed in 2011 by the merger of Gold Wheaton Gold Corp. (Gold Wheaton) and Franco-Nevada Corp. It is a Canada-based company that is engaged in the business

of the management of gold-focused royalties and streams portfolio from the production of existing mines or mines being constructed.



Figure 4.2 - Claim map of the Hamlin Lake Area.



Figure 4.3 - Map of Sungold property claims as of April 16, 2021.

# 5. Accessibility, Climate, Local Resources, Infrastructure and Physiography

#### 5.1.Accessibility

While there are several villages in the general area (Shebandowan and Kashabowie) the nearest community providing major services, including an international airport, is Thunder Bay, Ontario. Highway 11 provides all-season road access to the north of the property and from there a series of forest access roads (Swamp Road and West Nelson Lake Road) provide reasonable access to much of the property.

The Swamp Road forest access road heads south from Highway 11, approximately 15.6 km west of Kashabowie. You then drive south 13.9 km to the Hermia Lake road, turn right and go 6.7 km to the Nelson road and then turn left. Upon reaching the Wawiag River, you have reached the northern boundary of the property.

#### 5.2.Climate

The climate of the North-western Ontario area is dominantly a moist continental climate moderated by the maritime effects of Lake Superior. Environment Canada records for Thunder Bay, the nearest major centre with weather records, show that summer temperatures range between 20°C and 23°C, with a mean temperature of 17.6°C in July. Winter temperatures usually range between -11°C and -15°C with an average January temperature of -15°C (<u>http://climate.weatheroffice.gc.ca/climateData/canada\_e.html</u>). Lakes typically freeze-up in mid-December and break-up is usually in mid-April. The region usually receives approximately 712 mm of precipitation per year, with about 26% originating as snow during the winter months. Yearly the area averages about 91 days of precipitation per year.

#### 5.3.Local resources and Infrastructure

The project area is easily accessible by logging roads originating from Highway 11, approximately 22 km to the north-northeast. Equipment and supplies can be easily acquired and transported by road from Thunder Bay, the nearest major centre, approximately 110 km to the east. There, one has access to an international airport, hospitals, and schools. The nearest First Nation community is Fort William First Nation, also 110 km to the east of the property, at the south edge of the city of Thunder Bay. Two small villages, Kashabowie and Shebandowan, are to the northeast and east of the property.

There is road access by logging roads, to the immediate project area. The closest access to the Ontario power grid is at Highway 11, 22 km to the north northeast. The community of Kashabowie, approximately 31 km to the northeast, is on the CNR rail system as well as being serviced by the Trans-Canada highway.

# 5.4.Physiography

The project area is in North-western Ontario within the Boreal Zone. The average elevation is approximately 422 m above mean sea level. The property area is predominantly rolling hills with good drainage that is part of the Lake Superior watershed. The project area is located within the drainage

basin of the Shebandowan River that flows eastward into the Kaministikwia River and then into Lake Superior.

The area is well forested with stands of black and white spruce (Picea glauca and Mariana) and jack, red and white pine (Pinus banksiana, Pinus resinosa and Pinus strobes) mixed with trembling aspen (Populus tremuloides), balsam poplar (Populus balsamifera) and white birch (Betula papyrifera) with minor amounts of white cedar (Thuja occidentalis) and tamarack (Larix Iaricina). Willows (Salix) and alders (Alnus) are present along creeks and in poorly drained areas.

# 6. History

## 6.1.General

The area is noteworthy in that one of the first gold mines found in Ontario is the Huronian (also know as Jackfish Lake, Ardeen and Moss) Mine originally discovered in 1871. Over the years the area has been explored extensively for copper with the most significant finds being the copper showing at Hamlin Lake and the Cu-Zn showing between Wye Lake and Redfox Lake. The first geological investigation of the area was by T.L Tanton in 1938. The Burchell Lake area to the east was mapped by P.E. Giblin, in 1964 for the Ontario Department of Mines (ODM). Burchell Lake and to the west was mapped by H.L. Harris in 1970. And the area from Burchell Lake east to Greenwater Lake is described in Report 296 by I.A. Osmani (1997).

#### **6.2.Sungold Area History**

1956: Ray Smith, after locating copper mineralisation just north of Hamlin Lake staked claims which were then optioned to Noranda. Subsequent work consisted of geophysics, trenching and the drilling of seven holes totalling 707 metres. The best result was 3% Cu over 0.37m.

MacLeod-Cockshut Mines acquired a property on strike to the northeast. They completed geophysics and two drill holes. Nothing of significance was found.

- 1957: Cominco located copper mineralisation at the west end of Redfox Lake. They completed trenching and 3 holes totalling 140 metres.
- 1964: Mining Corp. drilled 3 holes totalling 306 metres to test an EM anomaly.
- 1965: Canadian Aero Minerals Surveys completed an airborne magnetometer survey for Cominco in the area.
- 1966: Cominco did follow-up to the airborne survey done the year before consisting of drilling 14 holes totalling 1,191 metres to test scattered EM targets in and around the current property. Nothing of note was located.
- 1969: Canadian Nickel (Canico) drilled 2 holes totalling 88 metres in the Otter Lake area.
- 1970: Canadian Nickel (Canico) drilled 1 hole totalling 398 metres near Pats Lake.

Falconbridge drilled 6 holes totalling 988 metres in the Home Lake area.

- 1971: Falconbridge drilled another 9 holes totalling 1,078 metres in the Home Lake area.
- 1972: Falconbridge drilled 14 holes totalling 2,066 metres in the Deadmans Lake area.
- 1983: United Northstar Mines had a combined helicopter-borne magnetic and electromagnetic survey flown over the area.

1984: Helicopter-borne magnetic and electromagnetic surveys were flown for Shebandowan Resources, Arctic Atlantic Exploration, Wolf River Resources and Cumberland Resources, all in the Powell Lake area.

Gunflint Resources completed line cutting, geochemical sampling and geological mapping on their property between Hamlin and McGinnis Lake.

1985: Grande Portage Resources optioned their property to Kennco Exploration who then completed geophysical and geological surveys over the property looking for gold. They found two showings: the Junction Zone and the Ray Smith Showing.

Cumberland Resources did a geological mapping and prospecting program on their property near McGinnis Lake.

Wolf River Resources staked claims also in the McGinnis Lake area and then completed line cutting followed by geochemical and geological mapping.

- 1986: Gunflint Resources completed additional line cutting followed by ground magnetic and VLF EM surveying, some limited IP surveying, geological mapping and trenching.
- 1987: Great Fortress Resources completed geophysics followed by diamond drilling on their property in the Moss Lake area. A total of 8 holes were drilled.

Grande Portage Resources completed an IP survey as well as trenching on the property worked on by Kennco in 1985.

Interquest Resources arranged to have an airborne geophysics survey flown over the area.

1988: Noranda completed an airborne combined magnetic and electromagnetic survey over the area.

Mingold Resources completed geology, geochemistry, and geophysics surveys over their property near Powell Lake.

Redfox Resources completed a geological survey on their property lying between Redfox Lake and Wye Lake.

1989: Grande Portage Resources completed 9 holes totalling 898 metres approximately 2.5 km to the north-northeast of Hamlin Lake. Another 8 holes totalling 995 metres north of Hamlin Lake to test the Junction Zone.

Mingold Resources drilled 12 holes totalling 1360 metres southwest of Hamlin Lake.

Redfox Resources continued exploration on their property at Redfox Lake consisting of ground geophysics and additional geological mapping.

Home Lake Resources completed ground geophysical surveys and geological mapping followed by 5 diamond drill holes totalling 762 metres on their property at Home Lake.

1990: Noranda carried out prospecting, geological mapping, and diamond drilling (4 holes totalling 515 metres) northeast of Hamlin Lake looking for gold. They had also optioned the Grande Portage property and completed geological mapping and reconnaissance geochemical sampling programs.

Home Lake Resources completed some mechanical stripping, prospecting, and sampling on their property at Home Lake.

- 1992: Hemlo Gold Mines, working northeast of Hamlin Lake, completed an IP survey followed by 3 diamond drill holes totalling 429 metres.
- 1996: R. Kwiatkowski and E. Kukkee staked the original Sungold claims.
- 2003: R. Kwiatkowski and E. Kukkee optioned their property to Freewest Resources Canada Inc. (Freewest) who then expanded the property through option and staking. They completed line cutting followed by ground geophysics.
- 2004: East West Resources and Maple Minerals had a VTEM helicopter-borne EM survey flown over the Hamlin Lake property. This was followed by an IP geophysical survey, geological mapping, prospecting,

and the drilling of 3 holes totalling metres 499 metres.

2005: East West Resources and Maple Minerals had a helicopter-borne EM survey completed more ground geophysical surveys as well as 24 drill holes totalling 3,327 metres at their property near the north end of Hamlin Lake.

Freewest Resources had a VTEM helicopter-borne EM survey flown over the whole property. They did surface mapping, ground geophysics, geological mapping and trenching at Wye Lake followed by drilling of 26 holes totalling 4,422 metres.

2006: East West Resources and Mega Uranium completed 26 holes on their Hamlin Lake property for a total of 5,504 metres.

Freewest completed additional geological mapping and drilled an additional 6 holes totalling 1,543 metres.

- 2008: Xstrata optioned the Sungold property from Freewest and drilled 2 holes totalling 815 metres. at Wye Lake and 8 holes totalling 1,701 metres. at Hamlin Lake. They also completed a soil geochemical survey at Hamlin Lake.
- 2009: Xstrata drilled 3 holes totalling 1,089 metres. at Hamlin Lake.
- 2010: Xstrata drilled 5 more holes totalling 1,790 metres. at Hamlin Lake.
- 2011: Xstrata drilled 24 holes totalling 7,582 metres. at Hamlin Lake. The option was then dropped.



# 7. Geological Setting and Mineralisation

Figure 7.1 – Map showing the main geological domains.

#### 7.1.Regional geology

The regional geology of the area can be subdivided into the following domains: Precambrian basement complex and Quaternary cover.

#### 7.1.1. Precambrian Basement Complex

The property is situated within the Shebandowan Greenstone Belt (see Figure 7.2), a Neoarchean (2718-2722 Ma) greenstone belt roughly 200 km long located within the western portion of the Wawa Subprovince of the western Superior Province of the Canadian Shield (see Figure 7.1).

NI43-101 Technical Report - Sungold Project



Figure 7.2 – Geology Map of the Sungold Property area with significant deposits and occurrences. NMB - Northern Mafic Belt, CFB – Central Felsic Belt, CMB - Central Mafic Belt, SMB – Southern Mafic Belt.

The western part of the Shebandowan Greenstone Belt (SGB) is bounded by clastic metasedimentary rocks of the Quetico sub-province to the northwest and to the southeast by a granitic batholith complex. The SGB itself consists primarily of mafic to felsic tholeiitic to calc-alkaline volcanic rocks. It has been subdivided into four components by Osmani (1997). From northwest to southeast they are the Northern Mafic Belt (NMB), the Central Felsic Belt (CFB), the Central Mafic Belt (CMB) and the Southern Mafic Belt (SMB). The CMB is a wedge within the CFB (Osmani, 1997).

#### 7.1.1.1. Northern Mafic Belt (NMB)

The mafic metavolcanic rocks of the NMB consist primarily of massive plagioclase-phyric, variolitic and pillowed flows and associated pillow and flow-top breccia. The mafic to intermediate fragmental metavolcanic rocks consist of tuffs, lapilli tuffs, tuff breccia and volcaniclastic rocks. Many of the pillowed and massive units have abundant amygdules. Mafic to intermediate fragmental metavolcanics are relatively abundant. They typically consist of block to lapilli sized subangular to subrounded fragments of pillowed and massive lavas in a mafic fine-grained matrix. They were likely deposited as subaqueous debris flows and usually poorly sorted although they can be well sorted fining upwards (Osmani, 1997).

#### 7.1.1.2. Central Felsic Belt (CFB)

The CFB bounded by the NMB to the northwest and the SMB to the southeast with the CMB being an internal wedge at the southwestern end of the SGB. The CFB is host to aphanitic to fine-grained massive and porphyritic flows and associated autoclastic breccias. Pyroclastic rocks include tuff, lapilli tuff and pyroclastic breccias. The massive aphanitic to fine-grained flows are the most common units. The dominant rock types are dacite to rhyodacite to rhyolite which are aphanitic to fine-grained massive and feldspar and quartz phyric flows with associated autoclastic breccias. The flows typically weather white to beige and are greenish grey on fresh surfaces. The porphyritic flows have up to 12% plagioclase and 5 to 10% rounded quartz grains. Pyroclastics, including tuff, lapilli tuff and breccias are abundant in the Hamlin Lake area (Osmani, 1997).

#### 7.1.1.3. Central Mafic Belt (CMB)

The mafic metavolcanic rocks in the CMB are like those in the NMB being dominated by massive to pillowed flows and related fragmentals. It splits the CFB south of Snodgrass Lake. It typically consists of aphanitic to fine-grained massive and porphyritic flows and associated autoclastic breccias (Osmani, 1997).

#### 7.1.1.4. Southern Mafic Belt (SMB)

The SMB is bounded to the south by granitoid rocks including early foliated gneissic tonalite to granodiorite and late- to posttectonic massive stocks and plutons. While massive to pillowed flows are present, while they are not as common as in the NMB and the CMB, they typically are better preserved. Locally it contains lenses of intermediate to felsic metavolcanic and metasedimentary rocks. Mafic to intermediate metavolcanic fragmentals, such as tuff, lapilli tuff, tuff breccia and agglomerates, are relatively less abundant than in the NMB and CMB. The pillowed flows typically contain very few or no amygdules suggesting deposition in deep-water. Massive and pillowed plagioclase-phyric flows are relatively abundant. The massive to pillowed flows commonly are variolitic and locally associated with

spinifex-textured mafic flows are present. Both units typically are high-magnesium basalts with 8 to 12% MgO. Medium to coarse-grained massive flows are common. In the Wye Lake area while there are a significant number of gabbro intrusions mapped, based on experience to the east, it is likely that most are misclassified massive flows that are medium to coarse-grained in the lower parts of the flows that, if one looks closely frequently fine upwards culminating with pillowed and brecciated flow tops. (Osmani, 1997).

#### 7.1.1.5. Powell Lake Granite

According to Harris (1970) the Powell Lake Granite (see Figure 7.2) is a medium-grained, massive, light pink to light grey granite with 5 to 10% biotite and chlorite. In places it is red in colour. It intrudes into the Shebandowan Greenstone Belt.

#### 7.1.1.6. Myrt Lake Batholith

The Myrt Lake Batholith (see Figure 7.2) flanks the Shebandowan Greenstone belt in the Sungold property area to the southeast. It is like the Powell Lake granite to the northwest in that it is typically a grey to pink, massive, biotite granite that ranges from fine- to medium-grained (Harris, 1970).

#### 7.1.2. Quaternary Cover

The area is mantled by a discontinuous veneer, of variable thickness, of glacial and periglacial till and clay deposits.

# 7.2. Local Geology

The property is underlain primarily by rocks of the CFB, CMB and the SMB. The Powell Lake granite separates the bulk of the CFB from a sliver of the CFB and the SMB. The latter is in faulted contact with the Myrt Lake Batholith. Through the length of the property felsic rocks are the most extensive and consist of massive to quartz-phyric rhyolite and with silica-rich fragments. Colour varies from light green to white to brown. Some show signs of flow banding. Intermediate metavolcanic rocks consist of primarily dacite to andesite that is aphanitic and with similar colour ranges as the felsics but not as hard due to the lower silica content. While physically like the felsic rocks geochemically they are distinct when compared based on immobile elements such as Zr and Ti. The mafic metavolcanic rocks are typically fragmentals (Osmani, 1997).

#### 7.2.1. Wye Lake Geology

The Wye Lake area is underlain by a sequence of felsic metavolcanic rocks which Poulsen (2005) divided into two assemblages: a lower felsic assemblage, that hosts the Wye Lake occurrence and an upper felsic assemblage. Both overlie a layered igneous complex previously mapped to include extensive gabbro. These "gabbro's" are problematic as it is quite possible these are thick massive mafic flows, a feature exposed elsewhere in the area such as Lower Shebandowan Lake. There, the base of these flows are medium to coarse-grained, but if you closely examined a cross-section often you can find these capped by finer-grained tops culminating in flow-top breccias which in turn are overlain by another thick flow. This "igneous complex" also contains ultramafic (peridotite) and feldspar-phyric gabbroic units. Again, further to the east in the vicinity of the past-producing Shebandowan (Ni-Cu) Mine similar rock

types also occur and are conformable to pillowed flow units and, in some cases, such as a distinctive marker horizon of feldspar-phyric pillowed mafic flows.



Figure 7.2 - Geological map.

Interflow sediments are present within the metavolcanic package. These vary from greywacke, siltstone, argillite, cherty tuff and banded iron formation with the later two potentially being impermeable

barriers to hydrothermal fluids, a key ingredient for the creation of both VMS and IOCG mineralisation styles. At the Wye Lake occurrence, a cherty tuff unit separates mafic and felsic metavolcanic rocks and is closely related to the VMS-style mineralisation present. The massive sulphides, while they are spatially correlated with the cherty tuff unit, typically do not have associated stringer sulphide zones within the structural footwall. As such these may be more distal deposits; sulphides precipitated down from a metal-rich exhalative plume away from the main vent.

#### 7.2.2. Hamlin Lake Geology

A tongue of the Powel Lake granite intrudes the metavolcanic package at Hamlin Lake. To the northwest of the granite are rocks of the Central Felsic Band of the Shebandowan Greenstone Belt. The metavolcanic rocks vary from calc-alkaline to shoshonitic felsic to intermediate pyroclastics and flows. A breccia zone is present along the contact with the granite and the metavolcanic rocks. This breccia consists of angular to sub-rounded fragments of volcanic rocks and granite cemented by chlorite and magnetite with up to 5% pyrite and locally up to 10% chalcopyrite (Forslund, 2012). This breccia unit has been traced about 1.2 km in length and can be up to 200 metres thick that is sub-vertical to steeply dipping to the northwest and is open to depth. This unit is host to Iron Oxide Copper Gold (IOCG) style mineralisation.

#### 7.2.3. Faulting

The Knife Lake Fault is a major lineament structure that has been traced approximately 100 km and in the vicinity of the Sungold property marks the eastern limit of the metavolcanic units.

## 7.3.Mineralisation

There are two primary styles of mineralisation present on the property. These are VMS-type massive sulphide and IOCG magnetite-rich breccias.

The mineralisation at Wye Lake consists of VMS-style massive sulphide associated with a cherty tuff unit separating mafic and felsic volcanic rocks. The cherty tuff unit is well banded. Such units are well documented as being key marker horizons in many VMS districts. The massive sulphide exposed consists of sphalerite, chalcopyrite and relatively minor iron sulphide. Several aspects of this mineralisation of note are: the sulphides may have undergone remobilisation; the iron-poor nature of the sulphides indicates a high temperature of formation; and chalcopyrite appears to be superimposed on the sphalerite indicating a progressive heating of a sulphide mound or a high-temperature hydrothermal system (Franklin, 2005).

Mineralisation at Hamlin Lake consists of a polymictic breccia with a magnetite-rich matrix. Clasts are angular to rounded and vary from centimetre scale to meter scale. The clasts vary in composition from quartz-phyric rhyolite, intermediate metavolcanic rocks, felsic tuff, chert, gabbro, diorite and granite. There have been two phases of mineralisation noted: one associated with potassic alteration and iron-oxide mineralisation and the other being characterised by the presence of quartz and a general lack of massive iron-oxide (magnetite). The former is characterised by the presence of chalcopyrite + pyrite + magnetite. It has been interpreted that the fluids associated with deposition of the mineralisation had low-salinity with a temperature range of 200° to 250° C (Forslund, 2012).

# 8. Deposit Types

The mineral deposit types being explored for at the Sungold Property are Volcanogenic Massive Sulphide, or VMS (see Figure 8.1) and Iron Oxide-Copper-Gold-Uranium (IOCGU). The former style of the deposit is a major source of Cu, Zn and to a lesser extent Pb, Ag, Au, Cd, Se, Sn, Bi and minor amounts of other metals. The latter can be a significant source of Cu, Au and U. Both can have a high value due to their multi-element characters and concentrated value per tonne mined. Geology, geophysics and geochemistry can all be used to target both styles of mineralisation. Issues with VMS style mineralisation include their generally small size (2.7 to 7.1 Mt depending on VMS model type), metallurgical changes such as grain size and deleterious metal content (Gibson et al., 2007).

#### 8.1. VMS

This deposit type is typically an accumulation of massive to semi-massive sulphides that are syngenetic, stratabound and in part strataform. They usually consist of two parts: a concordant massive sulphide lens and an underlying discordant vein-type sulphide stringer or stockwork zone that is within a footwall alteration zone.



Figure 8.1 - Idealized VMS deposit showing a strataform lens of massive sulphide overlying a discordant stringer sulphide zone within an envelope of altered rock (alteration pipe). Modified from Gibson et al., 2007).

In Figure 8.1 base metal zonation is indicated by numbers in circles with the highest numbers being Curich and the lower numbers more Zn-rich (Py = pyrite, Cp = chalcopyrite, Po = pyrrhotite, Sp = sphalerite and Gn = galena. VMS deposits are the product of hydrothermal vents on the seafloor that form syngenetically with active volcanism and/or plutonism. They form at or just below the seafloor as a product of the discharge of high temperature, seawater-dominated hydrothermal fluids as illustrated in Figure 8.2. There are 6 main elements typically present and are considered essential for the formation of VMS hydrothermal systems and their associated base metal deposits (Gibson et al., 2007):

- A heat source is required to drive the hydrothermal system. This may be syn-volcanic high-level intrusions.
- There is a high-temperature reaction zone that forms through the reaction of seawater with volcanic and sedimentary strata that results in the leaching of metals from these rocks.
- There need to be deep penetrating synvolcanic faults that allow the recharge and discharge of the metal-bearing hydrothermal fluid.
- The interaction of the ascending high-temperature fluids and mixing with ambient seawater results in the footwall and hanging wall alteration zones.
- Massive sulphide deposits form at or near the seafloor due to interaction with the overlying cold seawater and the ascending hydrothermal fluids resulting in the precipitation of dissolved metals.



• Distal products, usually exhalites, form due to the contribution of the hydrothermal system to background sedimentation.

Figure 8.2 - Schematic illustrating the relationship between subvolcanic intrusions, subsea-floor alteration, syn-volcanic faulting and the generation of VMS deposits (modified after Galley, 1993 and Franklin et al., 2005).



Figure 8.3 - Schematic illustrating the relationship between fluid flow derived from intrusions resulting in the formation of IOCG mineralisation (Niiranen, 2005).

#### 8.2. IOCG

Iron oxide-copper-gold (IOCG) deposits are a diverse set of epigenetic copper-gold deposits. They typically have the following characteristics:

- There is the association of the elements Fe, Cu, Au, Co, U, REE, Ba and F.
- There is a high Fe-S ratio resulting in magnetite and/or hematite-rich host rocks.
- The deposits are typically enclosed by an extensive Na-Ca-K-Fe alteration envelope.

- The fluids associated with the alteration are believed to be highly saline aqueous ± carbonic fluids.
- There is a spatial relationship with crustal-scale fault or shear zones.

These deposits form a group with a diverse range of age, tectonic setting, host rocks and mineralisation styles. Grades typically relatively low (0.5-1.5% Cu, 0.2-1 gpt Au). The average iron content is usually between 15 and 35 %. Many IOCG deposits of the iron oxides appear to be paragenetic precursors to the copper-gold mineralisation. It has been proposed that magnetite-rich ironstones have acted as redox traps for sulphur-rich fluids (Niiranen, 2005).

The deposits are typically surrounded by hydrothermal alteration halos that vary from sodic to potassic styles, or a combination of both. Potassic alteration products are usually K-feldspar and biotite or sericite. The calcic alteration is usually dominated by skarn minerals such as diopside-hedenbergite, andradite-grossular and Ca-amphiboles. The alteration styles depend somewhat on the lithology of the host rock. These types of system tend to produce sulphide poor mineralisation (Niiranen, 2005).

# 9. Exploration

To date Strike Copper has done very little work on the property but their acquisition of the property was based primarily on the work done by previous workers, especially Freewest who acquired the property in 2004. Exploration work completed by or associated with Freewest is summarized below.

#### 2004

• Freewest Resources Canada Inc. assembled the Sungold claim package through 3 option agreements and additional staking.

#### 2005

- An airborne VTEM geophysics survey was flown over the property.
- Ground geophysics, geological mapping and trenching were completed over the Wye Lake occurrence followed by diamond drilling.
- There were 26 holes drilled totalling 4,422metres. Downhole Pulse EM surveys were completed on 17 of the drill holes.

#### 2006

- Geological mapping was completed over the southwestern portion of the property.
- Six holes totalling 1,543 m were drilled.
- In the fall of the year, geological mapping and prospecting were done near Hamlin Lake.

#### 2008

• Xstrata optioned the property from Freewest. They completed 2 holes totalling 815 m at Wye Lake. They also completed a soil geochemistry survey over the Hamlin Lake portion of the property followed by 8 drill holes totalling 1,701 m.

#### 2009

• Xstrata completed 3 holes totalling 1,089 m at Hamlin Lake.

#### 2010

• Xstrata completed 5 holes totalling 1,790 m at Hamlin Lake.

#### 2011

• Xstrata completed 24 holes totalling 7,582 m at Hamlin Lake.

# 9.1.Strike Copper Exploration Work

# 9.1.1. Prospecting and Trenching

Between May 29<sup>th</sup> and August 28<sup>th</sup>, 2020, a prospecting and trenching program was used to ground truth several target areas on the Sungold property by Strike Copper. A total of 219 grab samples were collected. The highlights of the sampling program are shown in Table 9.1.



Figure 10.1 – Summary map showing the aeromagnetic survey completed in 2005 along with all historical drill collars completed to date.



Figure 10.2 – Summary map showing the airborne electromagnetic VTEM survey completed in 2005 along with all historical drill collars completed to date.

UTM	UTM	Sample		Date	Au	Ag	Cu
Easting	Northing	No.	Area	collected	g/t	g/t	%
660885	5368734	180954	15G & North	2020-06-15	1.120		
662987	5372253	180903	Hamlin Lake	2020-06-08	1.430		
660911	5368755	180890	15G & North	2020-06-13	2.000		
659692	5368748	180876	Russell Showing	2020-06-11	2.540		
662755	5372027	180868	Hamlin Lake	2020-06-08	1.570		
660077	5368340	180802	Russell Showing	2020-05-29	2.630	4.4	
660282	5368576	180780	Russell Showing	2020-06-03	1.180		

Table 9.1 – Summary of surface sampling done by Strike Copper in 2020.

## 9.1.2. Ground Magnetic Survey

During the month of March 2021, Abitibi Geophysics completed a high-resolution, GPS-positioned ground magnetic survey over the Hamlin Lake property using a line spacing of 25 m. The ground magnetic data was collected along 103 lines oriented in a NW direction with an azimuth of 40° West. The magnetic total field map generated from the survey data is shown in Figure 10.3 (Coles and Chemam, 2021).

During the post-processing phase an unconstrained 3D magnetic inversion was completed on the residual data to clarify the subsurface geometry and the physical properties of the delineated anomalies.

Following is a summary of the results from the magnetic intensity map (Coles and Chemam, 2021):

- There is a magnetic lineament labeled HL-1 in the northeastern part of the grid that trends N40° to N65° and extends over a kilometre. The magnetic inversion characterises the anomaly as almost outcropping, is steeply dipping and is unrooted. This anomaly is associated with known copper mineralisation.
- Within the centre of the grid is a complex shaped strongly magnetic feature labelled HL-2. It appears to be composed of three folded magnetic lineaments. These are believed to be mafic-ultramafic rocks and iron formation.
- There is a broad magnetic anomaly, HL-3a, that consists of two magnetic lineaments. The magnetic inversion indicated that this unit continues westward and increases in depth.
- There are a few narrow and discontinuous magnetic lineaments that may be dike structures.

It was concluded that the magnetic survey successfully mapped the high magnetic lineament (HL-1) where the known Bill's (BT) and Emilio's (ET) mineralized trenches (BT) are associated. In addition, prominent strong and folded magnetic lineaments (HL-02a to HL-02c), considered favorable targets for hosting IOCG mineralization were delineated in the center of the study grid (Coles and Chemam, 2021).



Figure 10.3 - High-resolution magnetic total field map.

# 9.1.3. 3D Modelling of Diamond Drilling

During May of 2021 most of the drilling logs for holes drilled in the Hamlin Lake and Wye Lake areas were digitised from the available PDF files. These were compiled into an Excel spreadsheet with four tables: a header table, a survey table, and assay table and a lithology table.

The copper mineralisation at Hamlin Lake was then evaluated by F. Bakker, using Minesight geological modelling software. The drill holes for the Hamlin Lake area were imported, checked, and validated. All were leveled to the same elevation datum due to inconsistent elevation records. The lithologic records were then converted to simplistic numerical values. A wireframe was constructed to constrain the brecciated unit that hosts the copper mineralisation. This wireframe was then used to capture drill hole data which was then composited to 2 metre intervals for no other reason other than to ensure equal support (Bakker, 2021).

Using the composited data variograms were calculated. While the data is rather sparse there is no significant anisotropy present and, for now, an isotropic model using a range of 100 metres was used.

This was followed by the construction of a 3D block model created using Inverse Distance weighting with an exponent of 3 using an isotropic search range of 100 metres. Grade shells were then formed using different cut-offs. These shells show that the mineralised zone is quite extensive and plunges to the southwest at about 10° with grades improving down plunge. This new information will be used to guide future drilling (Bakker, 2021).



Figure 10.4 – Long section view looking to the NW of the copper mineralisation at Hamlin Lake. The red arrow shows the SW trending plunge of the mineralisation.

# 10. Drilling

#### 10.1 Overview

Between 2005 and 2011 Freewest and Xstrata have drilled a total of 74 diamond drill holes totalling 18,942 m. Of these, 40 holes totalling 12,162 metres have been drilled at Hamlin Lake.

# 10.2 Wye Lake Drilling

At Wye Lake, a zone of VMS-style mineralisation was located just to the northwest of the maficultramafic sequence marked by the significantly higher magnetic signature (see Figure 10.1) due to elevated levels of magnetite. Table 10.1 lists the significant intersections identified by drilling to date.

<u>Hole No.</u>	<u>From(m)</u>	<u>To(m)</u>	Length(m)	<u>Cu%</u>	<u>Zn%</u>
WL05-01	40.4	40.9	0.5	0.06	2.77
WL05-02	30.6	39.17	8.57	0.38	3.38
WL05-07	137.7	138.85	1.15	3.9	0.3
	149.65	155.39	5.74	1.22	0.64
WL05-08	152.25	154.25	2	2.01	0.3
	162.05	166	3.95	1.03	3.11
WL05-11	146.47	148.15	1.68	0.76	2.91
WL05-13	25.25	37.7	12.45	0.72	
WL05-15	154.25	156.28	2.03	1.45	3.39
WL05-22	28	29.12	1.12	1.35	0.67

Table 10.1 - Summary highlights of Freewest drill results at Wye Lake (all lengths downhole).

# **10.3 Hamlin Lake Drilling**

<u>Hole No.</u>	<u>From(m)</u>	<u>To(m)</u>	Length(m)	<u>Cu%</u>	Au(gpt)
HAM11-76	211.5	258	46.5	0.17	0.04
NG10-07	327.4	328.7	20.6	0.14	0.02
NG11-08	126.5	156.5	30	0.12	0.03
NG11-09	286.2	326	39.8	0.09	0.03
NG11-10	116	131	15	0.13	0.05

Table 10.2 - Summary highlights of Xstrata drill results at Hamlin Lake (all lengths downhole).

The breccia zone has been traced along strike for about 1.2 km. Mineralised true widths vary from about 120 to about 175 metres and the mineralisation has been traced to about 300 metres below the surface and is still open to depth.


Figure 10.3 – Summary of drill hole locations Wye Lake



Figure 10.4 – Summary of drill hole locations Hamlin Lake. Black line is the property boundary.

# **11. Sample Preparation, Analyses and Security**

As the sampling done for Strike Copper to date, while summarised, are not material to this report and so the sample preparation, analysis and security procedures utilised were not reviewed and verified.

# **12. Data Verification**

The data used in preparing this report consisted primarily of documents available from the Ontario Ministry of Energy, Northern Development and Mines. Some information was provided by Strike Copper.

The procedures applied to verifying this data included reading each document ensuring it met generally accepted formats and procedures and ensuring that there were no obvious errors or omissions.

Based on the data review no issues were identified that would indicate that any of the data was not suitable for reference in this report.

# **13. Mineral Processing and Metallurgical Testing**

There has not yet been any mineral processing or metallurgical testing done.

### **14. Mineral Resource Estimates**

There has not yet been any mineral resource estimation done.

### **15. Mineral Reserve Estimates**

There has not yet been any mineral reserve estimation done.

# 16. Mining Methods

As no mining study has yet been done on the property no mining method has been selected.

# **17. Recovery Methods**

There has not yet been any bench testing done to determine optimal recovery methods.

# **18. Project Infrastructure**

There is currently no project infrastructure in place.

### **19. Market Studies and Contracts**

To date no pre-feasibility or feasibility study has been completed, thus there is no current market study completed or sales contracts signed.

# 20. Environmental Studies, Permitting and Social or Community Impact

As the project is in its infancy there yet have not been any environmental studies done or any social or community impact studies done.

Exploration Permit PR-18-000237 has been issued by the Ontario Ministry of Energy, Northern Development and Mines covering the full property. Work covered by the permit includes diamond drilling, mechanical stripping, pitting and trenching, line cutting and geophysical surveys that require the use of a generator. The permit was issued December 3, 2018 and is in effect until December 2, 2021. No additional terms and conditions apply to the permit.

# 21. Capital and Operating Costs

As no pre-feasibility or feasibility studies have been completed there are no current estimates of capital and operating costs.

# 22. Economic Analysis

To date, no pre-feasibility or feasibility study has been completed and so there has not yet been any economic analysis completed.

### 23. Adjacent Properties

There are two deposits of note that are in the vicinity of the Sungold property. These are the i) past producing Huronian Gold Mine, currently being explored by Kesselrun Resources Ltd. and ii) the Moss Lake gold deposit recently explored by Wesdome Gold Mines Ltd.

#### 23.1 Huronian Gold Mine

A trapper discovered gold on the property in 1871 and soon after the Jackfish Lake Mining Company was formed. In 1882 a 1-ton (0.9 t) bulk sample was removed for testing and yielded 1.76 oz (54.7 g) of gold and 12.98 oz (403.7 g) of silver. Late that year the Huronian Mining Company was organised and took over the property and started development. After extracting 700 tons (635 t) of ore that tested with a stamp mill the property was idle until 1925. At that time Moss Mines Limited was formed and development was re-established with the construction of chlorination plant to treat the telluride-rich ore and the sinking of a shaft down to the 750-foot (229 m) level and production beginning in 1932. In 1933 Ardeen Gold Mines Limited acquired the property and eventually extended the shaft down to the 1,275-foot (389 m) level and converted the mill to a cyanide process. The operation went bankrupt in 1936. In 1937 Kerry Gold Mines Limited was formed to operate the property yet the mine was not reopened (Poirier et al., 2013).

The historic production from the mine is 29,629 oz (921.6 kg) Au and 172,376 oz (5361.5 kg) Ag from 143,724 tons (130,384 t) of ore for an average grade of 0.21 opT (7.2 gpt) Au and 1.2 opT (41.1 gpt) Ag (Poirier et al., 2013).

The property is currently being explored by Kesselrun Resources.

The authour has not verified this information.

#### 23.2 Moss Lake Gold deposit

Sometime around 1936, a gold showing was found on Snodgrass Lake. Lobanor Gold Mines drilled 12 holes totalling 1,431 m in 1945. In the 1970s Falconbridge drilled the showing. In 1983 Tandem Resources acquired the property and drilled 5 holes totalling 661 m. In 1984 a joint venture was formed between Tandem and Storimin Exploration Ltd. In 1985 they stripped the original showing. Between 1986 and 1989 they drilled 204 holes totalling 50,214 m. They then developed a decline down to the 96 m level where they drilled 32 underground holes totalling 1,514 m and did extensive underground sampling. This work located a zone 1,219 m long by about 240 m wide and to a depth of about 400 m (Poirier et al., 2013).

In 1990 Central Crude Limited optioned the property. They drilled an additional 69 holes totalling 24,506 m in 1991. The following year they drilled another 7 holes totalling 4,383 m. An extensive surface stripping project was completed and sampled (Poirier et al., 2013).

In 1994 Moss Lake Gold Mines was formed to consolidate ownership of the deposit. In 1996 they drilled 17 holes, most to test the main zone. Sporadic geophysical surveys were done over the next few years.



Figure 23.1 - Location of significant gold deposits in the vicinity of the Sungold property.

In 2002 a 7-hole drill program was completed with a further 7 holes totalling 1,506 m done the next year. In 2004 a further 8 holes totalling 1,601 m were drilled. In 2007 they drilled a single 500 m hole. A NI 43-101 report was done in 2013 by InnovExplo and they reported Indicated resources of 39.8 million

tonnes grading 1.1 gpt Au and Inferred resources of 50.4 million tonnes grading 1.1 gpt Au (Poirier et al., 2013).

Wesdome Gold Mines Ltd. acquired Moss Lake Gold Mines in 2014. Goldshore Resources Inc. acquired the Moss Lake property from Wesdome in January of this year.

The authour has not verified this information.

### 24. Other Relevant Data and Information

There is no other data or information available that can make this report understandable.

#### 25. Interpretation and Conclusions

The Sungold property has been explored discontinuously since 1956 with the discovery of copper mineralisation at the north end of Hamlin Lake. Freewest Resources Canada Inc. acquired the property in 2004 and completed a helicopter-borne VTEM EM survey over the property using a flight line spacing of 200 metres. This survey helped them locate two target areas: one at Wye Lake where a cluster of conductors was identified just north of stratigraphic magnetic anomalies and coincident EM and magnetic anomalies at Hamlin Lake. Follow-up diamond drilling identified VMS base metal mineralisation at Wye Lake and IOCG mineralisation at Hamlin Lake. While subsequent work has so far has been unable to find potentially economic mineralisation at Wye Lake, the Hamlin IOCG mineralisation holds much promise with the most recent drilling located significant widths of low-grade copper mineralisation.

The exploration work done to date has focussed on Wye Lake and Hamlin Lake yet there are poorly tested anomalies around Deadman's Lake, Windblown Lake and McGinnis Lake.

The geological package has shown itself to be well mineralised with geology very conducive for hosting potentially economic mineralisation. Whether it be VMS mineralisation or low-grade IOCG mineralisation. There is also good potential for gold and Ni-Cu mineralisation. As such all need to be evaluated so that proper priorities are set for determining where future exploration dollars can be best spent.

#### **26. Recommendations**

Additional exploration is warranted on the Sungold project. It is strongly recommended that a more detailed geophysical program be implemented over target areas identified by the VTEM survey. For example, there are untested EM anomalies in the Windblown, Deadman's and McGinnis Lake areas that have not been fully evaluated. Many of these are related to the layered igneous complex that includes ultramafic units that may be komatiitic in origin. These are spatially related to EM conductors that may have provided sources of secondary sulphur to aid in the partitioning of Ni from the ultramafic magma or may indicate the presence of magmatic sulphide zones within the ultramafic units. Regardless, this complex needs to be evaluated.

Detailed ground geophysics followed by geological mapping should be done in those potential target areas identified by the 2005 VTEM AEM survey using cut lines with a line spacing of 100 metres. This higher resolution data would allow a more effective location of future diamond drilling.

#### **26.1 Phase 1 Recommendations**

Phase 1 work should focus on getting more detailed information on areas of interest identified from the regional VTEM data. The relationships between magnetic trends with electromagnetic anomalies are already established as the two known deposits have a strong correlation between magnetic anomalies and EM anomalies.

Due to the positional accuracy and having more detailed data it is recommended that line cutting followed by ground geophysics (100 m line spacing) be gathered over key parts of the property.

#### 26.2 Phase 2 Recommendations

Phase 2 work should consist of geological mapping and additional geophysics over the known deposits as well as any new zones identified by the Phase 1 work.

A proposed budget for the Phase 1 & 2 recommendations is presented in Table 26.1 below.

Proposed	Proposed Sungold Budget										
<u>Phase</u>	<u>Item</u>	<u>Units</u>	<u>Cost</u>								
1	Line Cutting	100 km	\$	82,000.00							
	Detailed Geophysics Survey	280 km	\$	100,000.00							
	Contingency (10%)		\$	18,000.00							
	Tota	ıl	\$	200,000.00							
2	Geological Mapping and Ground Geophysics		\$	182,000.00							
	Support Costs		\$	90,000.00							
	Contingency (10%)		\$	28,000.00							
	Tota	al de la companya de	\$	300,000.00							

Table 26.1 - Proposed exploration budget.

#### 27. References

Bakker, F., 2021, Memo describing 3D Modelling for Hamlin Lake; personal communication.

- Coles, P. and Chemam, M, 2021, GPS-Positioned Ground Magnetic Survey Logistics and Interpretation Report; prepared for Strike Copper Corporation, 26 p.
- Forslund, N., 2012, Alteration and Fluid Characterization of the Hamlin Lake IOCG Occurrence, Northwestern Ontario, Canada; MSc Thesis, Lakehead University. 284 p.
- Franklin, J.M., 2005, Notes on the Sungold Property, Kashabowie Area, Ontario; prepared for Freewest Resources Canada Ltd, 14 p.
- Franklin, J.M., Gibson, H.L., Jonasson, I.R., Galley A.G., 2005, Volcanogenic massive Sulphide Deposits, in, Hedenquist, J.W., Thompson, J.F.H., Goldfarb, R.J., Richards, J.P., eds., Economic Geology, One Hundredth Anniversary Volume, p. 523- 560.
- Galley, A.G. 1993. Characteristics of semi-conformable alteration zones associated with volcanogenic massive sulphide districts; Journal of Geocehmical Exploration, Vol. 48, Issue 2, P. 175-200.
- Gibson, H.L., Allen, R.L., Riverin, G. and Lane, T.E. 2007. The VMS Model: Advances and Application to Exploration Targeting; In "Proceedings of Exploration 07: Fifth Decennial International Conference on Mineral Exploration" edited by B. Milkereit, p. 713-730.
- Giblin, P.E. 1964. Burchell Lake Area; Ontario Department of Mines, GR 19, 39 p.
- Harris, F.R., 1970. Geology of the Moss Lake Area, District of Thunder Bay; Ontario Department of Mines, GR 85, 87 p.
- Niirinen, T., 2005, Iron Oxide-Copper-Gold Deposits in Finland: case studies from the Peräpohja schist belt and the Central Lapland greenstone belt; Publications of the Department of Geology D6, University of Helsinki, 27 p.
- Tanton T.LJ., 1938. Quetico Sheet (East Half), Thunder Bay and Rainy River Districts, Ontario; Geological Survey of Canada, scale 1 inch to 4 miles.
- Osmani, I.A., 1997. Geology and Mineral Potential, Greenwater Lake Area, West-Central Shebandowan Greenstone Belt; Ontario Geological Survey, Report 296, 157 p.
- Poirier, S., Richard, P-L., Patrick, G.A. and Palich, J. 2013 Technical Report and Preliminary Economic Assessment for the Moss Lake Project; prepared for Moss Lake Gold Mines Ltd. by InnovExplo, 178 p.

Poulsen, K.H., 2005, Report on the June 2005 Geological and Lithogeochemical Orientation Survey at the Wye Lake Massive Sulfide Prospect, Sungold Property, Kashabowie Area, Ontario; prepared for Freewest Resources Canada Ltd., 27 p.

### **Certificate of Qualifications**

I, Alan James Aubut, do hereby certify the following:

• I operate under the business name of Sibley Basin Group Geological Consulting Services Ltd., a company independent of Strike Copper Corp. The business address of Sibley Basin Group Geological Consulting Services Ltd. is:

Sibley Basin Group PO Box 304 300 First St. West Nipigon, ON POT 2J0

- I am the sole authour of this National Instrument 43-101 technical document titled "National Instrument 43-101Technical Report, Sungold Project, Burchell Lake Area, Ontario, Canada, Thunder Bay Mining Division, NTS 52B07, Geology Technical Report, UTM: Zone 16, 566303m E, 5854885m N, NAD83" (the report) and it is effective July 29, 2021.
- I am a graduate Geologist of Lakehead University, in Thunder Bay, Ontario with the degree of Honours Bachelor of Science, Geology (1977).
- I am a graduate Geologist of the University of Alberta, in Edmonton, Alberta with the degree of Master of Science, Geology (1979).
- I have been a practicing Geologist since 1979.
- I am currently a member in good standing of Professional Geoscientists of Ontario.
- I am a member of the Society of Economic Geologists.
- I have read National Instrument 43-101 and confirm that I am a "qualified person" for the purposes of this instrument and that this report has been prepared in compliance with said instrument.
- I have visited the Sungold property that is the subject of this report on February 20<sup>th</sup> of 2021.
- I take responsibility for all items within this report.
- I am independent, as defined by Chapter 5 Section 1.5 of NI 43-101, of Strike Copper Corp. and all other parties related to the subject property and do not expect to become an insider, associate, or employee of any of the parties.
- As of July 29, 2021, the report to the best of my knowledge, information and belief contains all scientific and technical information that is required to be disclosed to make the report not misleading.

Strike Copper Corp. supplied copies of all reports and data available. It was these data that were used for the current project.

1750

flan Aubut ROFES RACTISING MEMBEI



July 29, 2021

55

<b>Appendix 1</b>	_	Claims	Summary
-------------------	---	--------	---------

Cell_Num	Cell_Type	Tenure_Status	Issue_Date	Anniversary	Holder	Assessment Required	Assessment Reserve	Royalty
106274	Single Cell Mining Claim	Active	Tuesday, April 10, 2018	Sunday, August 08, 2021	(100) Strike Copper Corp.	200	0	2.5% (FNV 2%, KK 0.5%)
107285	Single Cell Mining Claim	Active	Tuesday, April 10, 2018	Tuesday, May 18, 2021	(100) Strike Copper Corp.	400	0	3.5% (FNV 2%, KK 1.5%)
107286	Single Cell Mining Claim	Active	Tuesday, April 10, 2018	Tuesday, May 18, 2021	(100) Strike Copper Corp.	400	0	3.5% (FNV 2%, KK 1.5%)
107287	Single Cell Mining Claim	Active	Tuesday, April 10, 2018	Friday, November 12, 2021	(100) Strike Copper Corp.	400	0	2.5% (FNV 2%, KK 0.5%)
108004	Single Cell Mining Claim	Active	Tuesday, April 10, 2018	Friday, May 07, 2021	(100) Strike Copper Corp.	400	0	3.5% (FNV 2%, KK 1.5%)
108005	Single Cell Mining Claim	Active	Tuesday, April 10, 2018	Friday, November 12, 2021	(100) Strike Copper Corp.	400	0	3.5% (FNV 2%, KK 1.5%)
108006	Single Cell Mining Claim	Active	Tuesday, April 10, 2018	Friday, November 12, 2021	(100) Strike Copper Corp.	400	0	3.5% (FNV 2%, KK 1.5%)
108245	Boundary Cell Mining Claim	Active	Tuesday, April 10, 2018	Friday, November 12, 2021	(100) Strike Copper Corp.	400	0	2.5% (FNV 2%, KK 0.5%)
108246	Single Cell Mining Claim	Active	Tuesday, April 10, 2018	Friday, November 12, 2021	(100) Strike Copper Corp.	200	0	2.5% (FNV 2%, KK 0.5%)
108424	Single Cell Mining Claim	Active	Tuesday, April 10, 2018	Friday, November 12, 2021	(100) Strike Copper Corp.	400	0	2.5% (FNV 2%, KK 0.5%)
108425	Single Cell Mining Claim	Active	Tuesday, April 10, 2018	Friday, November 12, 2021	(100) Strike Copper Corp.	400	0	2.5% (FNV 2%, KK 0.5%)
109443	Single Cell Mining Claim	Active	Tuesday, April 10, 2018	Friday, November 12, 2021	(100) Strike Copper Corp.	400	0	3.5% (FNV 2%, KK 1.5%)
109444	Single Cell Mining Claim	Active	Tuesday, April 10, 2018	Friday, November 12, 2021	(100) Strike Copper Corp.	400	0	3.5% (FNV 2%, KK 1.5%)
109445	Single Cell Mining Claim	Active	Tuesday, April 10, 2018	Friday, November 12, 2021	(100) Strike Copper Corp.	400	0	3.5% (FNV 2%, KK 1.5%)
109567	Single Cell Mining Claim	Active	Tuesday, April 10, 2018	Friday, November 12, 2021	(100) Strike Copper Corp.	400	0	2.5% (FNV 2%, KK 0.5%)
110423	Single Cell Mining Claim	Active	Tuesday, April 10, 2018	Friday, November 12, 2021	(100) Strike Copper Corp.	400	0	2.5% (FNV 2%, KK 0.5%)
110633	Boundary Cell Mining Claim	Active	Tuesday, April 10, 2018	Friday, November 12, 2021	(100) Strike Copper Corp.	400	0	2.5% (FNV 2%, KK 0.5%)
110802	Single Cell Mining Claim	Active	Tuesday, April 10, 2018	Friday, November 12, 2021	(100) Strike Copper Corp.	200	0	3.5% (FNV 2%, KK 1.5%)
110803	Single Cell Mining Claim	Active	Tuesday, April 10, 2018	Friday, November 12, 2021	(100) Strike Copper Corp.	400	0	2.5% (FNV 2%, KK 0.5%)
112226	Single Cell Mining Claim	Active	Tuesday, April 10, 2018	Friday, November 12, 2021	(100) Strike Copper Corp.	400	0	2.5% (FNV 2%, KK 0.5%)
113999	Single Cell Mining Claim	Active	Tuesday, April 10, 2018	Friday, November 12, 2021	(100) Strike Copper Corp.	200	0	2.5% (FNV 2%, KK 0.5%)
114000	Single Cell Mining Claim	Active	Tuesday, April 10, 2018	Friday, November 12, 2021	(100) Strike Copper Corp.	400	0	2.5% (FNV 2%, KK 0.5%)
114082	Single Cell Mining Claim	Active	Tuesday, April 10, 2018	Friday, November 12, 2021	(100) Strike Copper Corp.	400	0	2.5% (FNV 2%, KK 0.5%)
123362	Single Cell Mining Claim	Active	Tuesday, April 10, 2018	Sunday, August 08, 2021	(100) Strike Copper Corp.	400	0	2.5% (FNV 2%, KK 0.5%)
124325	Single Cell Mining Claim	Active	Tuesday, April 10, 2018	Friday, November 12, 2021	(100) Strike Copper Corp.	400	0	2.5% (FNV 2%, KK 0.5%)
124326	Single Cell Mining Claim	Active	Tuesday, April 10, 2018	Friday, November 12, 2021	(100) Strike Copper Corp.	400	0	2.5% (FNV 2%, KK 0.5%)

Cell_Num	Cell_Type	Tenure_Status	Issue_Date	Anniversary	Holder	Assessment Required	Assessment Reserve	Royalty
124327	Single Cell Mining Claim	Active	Tuesday, April 10, 2018	Friday, November 12, 2021	(100) Strike Copper Corp.	400	0	2.5% (FNV 2%, KK 0.5%)
124328	Single Cell Mining Claim	Active	Tuesday, April 10, 2018	Friday, November 12, 2021	(100) Strike Copper Corp.	400	0	2.5% (FNV 2%, KK 0.5%)
125460	Single Cell Mining Claim	Active	Tuesday, April 10, 2018	Friday, November 12, 2021	(100) Strike Copper Corp.	400	0	3.5% (FNV 2%, KK 1.5%)
125461	Single Cell Mining Claim	Active	Tuesday, April 10, 2018	Friday, November 12, 2021	(100) Strike Copper Corp.	400	0	3.5% (FNV 2%, KK 1.5%)
126144	Boundary Cell Mining Claim	Active	Tuesday, April 10, 2018	Friday, November 12, 2021	(100) Strike Copper Corp.	400	0	2.5% (FNV 2%, KK 0.5%)
126145	Single Cell Mining Claim	Active	Tuesday, April 10, 2018	Friday, November 12, 2021	(100) Strike Copper Corp.	200	0	2.5% (FNV 2%, KK 0.5%)
127368	Single Cell Mining Claim	Active	Tuesday, April 10, 2018	Friday, November 12, 2021	(100) Strike Copper Corp.	400	0	2.5% (FNV 2%, KK 0.5%)
127369	Single Cell Mining Claim	Active	Tuesday, April 10, 2018	Friday, November 12, 2021	(100) Strike Copper Corp.	400	0	2.5% (FNV 2%, KK 0.5%)
130133	Single Cell Mining Claim	Active	Tuesday, April 10, 2018	Friday, November 12, 2021	(100) Strike Copper Corp.	400	0	2.5% (FNV 2%, KK 0.5%)
130593	Single Cell Mining Claim	Active	Tuesday, April 10, 2018	Friday, November 12, 2021	(100) Strike Copper Corp.	400	0	2.5% (FNV 2%, KK 0.5%)
130637	Single Cell Mining Claim	Active	Tuesday, April 10, 2018	Friday, November 12, 2021	(100) Strike Copper Corp.	400	0	2.5% (FNV 2%, KK 0.5%)
134334	Single Cell Mining Claim	Active	Tuesday, April 10, 2018	Tuesday, May 18, 2021	(100) Strike Copper Corp.	400	0	2.5% (FNV 2%, KK 0.5%)
135722	Single Cell Mining Claim	Active	Tuesday, April 10, 2018	Friday, November 12, 2021	(100) Strike Copper Corp.	400	0	2.5% (FNV 2%, KK 0.5%)
135723	Single Cell Mining Claim	Active	Tuesday, April 10, 2018	Friday, November 12, 2021	(100) Strike Copper Corp.	400	0	2.5% (FNV 2%, KK 0.5%)
135724	Single Cell Mining Claim	Active	Tuesday, April 10, 2018	Friday, November 12, 2021	(100) Strike Copper Corp.	400	0	2.5% (FNV 2%, KK 0.5%)
136934	Single Cell Mining Claim	Active	Tuesday, April 10, 2018	Friday, November 12, 2021	(100) Strike Copper Corp.	400	0	2.5% (FNV 2%, KK 0.5%)
137062	Single Cell Mining Claim	Active	Tuesday, April 10, 2018	Friday, November 12, 2021	(100) Strike Copper Corp.	400	0	2.5% (FNV 2%, KK 0.5%)
137539	Single Cell Mining Claim	Active	Tuesday, April 10, 2018	Friday, November 12, 2021	(100) Strike Copper Corp.	400	0	2.5% (FNV 2%, KK 0.5%)
137794	Single Cell Mining Claim	Active	Tuesday, April 10, 2018	Friday, November 12, 2021	(100) Strike Copper Corp.	400	0	2.5% (FNV 2%, KK 0.5%)
138159	Single Cell Mining Claim	Active	Tuesday, April 10, 2018	Friday, November 12, 2021	(100) Strike Copper Corp.	400	0	2.5% (FNV 2%, KK 0.5%)
138921	Single Cell Mining Claim	Active	Tuesday, April 10, 2018	Friday, November 12, 2021	(100) Strike Copper Corp.	400	0	2.5% (FNV 2%, KK 0.5%)
138922	Single Cell Mining Claim	Active	Tuesday, April 10, 2018	Friday, November 12, 2021	(100) Strike Copper Corp.	400	0	2.5% (FNV 2%, KK 0.5%)
140119	Single Cell Mining Claim	Active	Tuesday, April 10, 2018	Friday, May 07, 2021	(100) Strike Copper Corp.	400	0	3.5% (FNV 2%, KK 1.5%)
140860	Boundary Cell Mining Claim	Active	Tuesday, April 10, 2018	Friday, November 12, 2021	(100) Strike Copper Corp.	400	0	2.5% (FNV 2%, KK 0.5%)
140903	Single Cell Mining Claim	Active	Tuesday, April 10, 2018	Friday, November 12, 2021	(100) Strike Copper Corp.	200	0	2.5% (FNV 2%, KK 0.5%)
141792	Single Cell Mining Claim	Active	Tuesday, April 10, 2018	Friday, November 12, 2021	(100) Strike Copper Corp.	400	0	2.5% (FNV 2%, KK 0.5%)
141793	Single Cell Mining Claim	Active	Tuesday, April 10, 2018	Friday, November 12, 2021	(100) Strike Copper Corp.	400	0	2.5% (FNV 2%, KK 0.5%)
141794	Single Cell Mining Claim	Active	Tuesday, April 10, 2018	Friday, November 12, 2021	(100) Strike Copper Corp.	400	0	2.5% (FNV 2%, KK 0.5%)

Cell_Num	Cell_Type	Tenure_Status	Issue_Date	Anniversary	Holder	Assessment Required	Assessment Reserve	Royalty
142480	Single Cell Mining Claim	Active	Tuesday, April 10, 2018	Friday, November 12, 2021	(100) Strike Copper Corp.	400	0	2.5% (FNV 2%, KK 0.5%)
142481	Single Cell Mining Claim	Active	Tuesday, April 10, 2018	Friday, November 12, 2021	(100) Strike Copper Corp.	400	0	3.5% (FNV 2%, KK 1.5%)
142953	Single Cell Mining Claim	Active	Tuesday, April 10, 2018	Friday, November 12, 2021	(100) Strike Copper Corp.	400	0	3.5% (FNV 2%, KK 1.5%)
143113	Single Cell Mining Claim	Active	Tuesday, April 10, 2018	Friday, November 12, 2021	(100) Strike Copper Corp.	400	0	3.5% (FNV 2%, KK 1.5%)
143655	Single Cell Mining Claim	Active	Tuesday, April 10, 2018	Friday, November 12, 2021	(100) Strike Copper Corp.	400	0	3.5% (FNV 2%, KK 1.5%)
144879	Single Cell Mining Claim	Active	Tuesday, April 10, 2018	Tuesday, May 18, 2021	(100) Strike Copper Corp.	200	0	3.5% (FNV 2%, KK 1.5%)
145819	Single Cell Mining Claim	Active	Tuesday, April 10, 2018	Friday, November 12, 2021	(100) Strike Copper Corp.	400	0	2.5% (FNV 2%, KK 0.5%)
146212	Single Cell Mining Claim	Active	Tuesday, April 10, 2018	Friday, November 12, 2021	(100) Strike Copper Corp.	400	0	3.5% (FNV 2%, KK 1.5%)
146213	Single Cell Mining Claim	Active	Tuesday, April 10, 2018	Friday, November 12, 2021	(100) Strike Copper Corp.	400	0	3.5% (FNV 2%, KK 1.5%)
146561	Single Cell Mining Claim	Active	Tuesday, April 10, 2018	Friday, November 12, 2021	(100) Strike Copper Corp.	200	0	2.5% (FNV 2%, KK 0.5%)
146584	Single Cell Mining Claim	Active	Tuesday, April 10, 2018	Friday, November 12, 2021	(100) Strike Copper Corp.	400	0	2.5% (FNV 2%, KK 0.5%)
146660	Single Cell Mining Claim	Active	Tuesday, April 10, 2018	Friday, November 12, 2021	(100) Strike Copper Corp.	400	0	2.5% (FNV 2%, KK 0.5%)
147210	Single Cell Mining Claim	Active	Tuesday, April 10, 2018	Friday, November 12, 2021	(100) Strike Copper Corp.	400	0	2.5% (FNV 2%, KK 0.5%)
150819	Single Cell Mining Claim	Active	Tuesday, April 10, 2018	Sunday, August 08, 2021	(100) Strike Copper Corp.	200	0	2.5% (FNV 2%, KK 0.5%)
150820	Single Cell Mining Claim	Active	Tuesday, April 10, 2018	Sunday, August 08, 2021	(100) Strike Copper Corp.	200	0	2.5% (FNV 2%, KK 0.5%)
152619	Single Cell Mining Claim	Active	Tuesday, April 10, 2018	Friday, November 12, 2021	(100) Strike Copper Corp.	400	0	3.5% (FNV 2%, KK 1.5%)
156599	Single Cell Mining Claim	Active	Tuesday, April 10, 2018	Friday, November 12, 2021	(100) Strike Copper Corp.	400	0	2.5% (FNV 2%, KK 0.5%)
156600	Boundary Cell Mining Claim	Active	Tuesday, April 10, 2018	Friday, November 12, 2021	(100) Strike Copper Corp.	200	0	2.5% (FNV 2%, KK 0.5%)
158646	Single Cell Mining Claim	Active	Tuesday, April 10, 2018	Friday, November 12, 2021	(100) Strike Copper Corp.	400	0	3.5% (FNV 2%, KK 1.5%)
160027	Single Cell Mining Claim	Active	Tuesday, April 10, 2018	Friday, November 12, 2021	(100) Strike Copper Corp.	400	0	3.5% (FNV 2%, KK 1.5%)
160702	Single Cell Mining Claim	Active	Tuesday, April 10, 2018	Friday, November 12, 2021	(100) Strike Copper Corp.	400	0	2.5% (FNV 2%, KK 0.5%)
160750	Single Cell Mining Claim	Active	Tuesday, April 10, 2018	Friday, November 12, 2021	(100) Strike Copper Corp.	400	0	2.5% (FNV 2%, KK 0.5%)
160751	Single Cell Mining Claim	Active	Tuesday, April 10, 2018	Friday, November 12, 2021	(100) Strike Copper Corp.	400	0	2.5% (FNV 2%, KK 0.5%)
161444	Boundary Cell Mining Claim	Active	Tuesday, April 10, 2018	Friday, November 12, 2021	(100) Strike Copper Corp.	200	0	2.5% (FNV 2%, KK 0.5%)
162590	Single Cell Mining Claim	Active	Tuesday, April 10, 2018	Friday, November 12, 2021	(100) Strike Copper Corp.	400	0	3.5% (FNV 2%, KK 1.5%)
162591	Single Cell Mining Claim	Active	Tuesday, April 10, 2018	Friday, May 07, 2021	(100) Strike Copper Corp.	400	0	3.5% (FNV 2%, KK 1.5%)
163462	Single Cell Mining Claim	Active	Tuesday, April 10, 2018	Friday, November 12, 2021	(100) Strike Copper Corp.	400	0	3.5% (FNV 2%, KK 1.5%)
166032	Single Cell Mining Claim	Active	Tuesday, April 10, 2018	Friday, November 12, 2021	(100) Strike Copper Corp.	400	0	2.5% (FNV 2%, KK 0.5%)

Cell_Num	Cell_Type	Tenure_Status	Issue_Date	Anniversary	Holder	Assessment Required	Assessment Reserve	Royalty
166082	Single Cell Mining Claim	Active	Tuesday, April 10, 2018	Friday, November 12, 2021	(100) Strike Copper Corp.	400	0	2.5% (FNV 2%, KK 0.5%)
167295	Boundary Cell Mining Claim	Active	Tuesday, April 10, 2018	Friday, November 12, 2021	(100) Strike Copper Corp.	200	0	3.5% (FNV 2%, KK 1.5%)
167296	Single Cell Mining Claim	Active	Tuesday, April 10, 2018	Friday, November 12, 2021	(100) Strike Copper Corp.	400	0	3.5% (FNV 2%, KK 1.5%)
168723	Single Cell Mining Claim	Active	Tuesday, April 10, 2018	Friday, November 12, 2021	(100) Strike Copper Corp.	400	0	2.5% (FNV 2%, KK 0.5%)
171982	Single Cell Mining Claim	Active	Tuesday, April 10, 2018	Friday, November 12, 2021	(100) Strike Copper Corp.	400	0	2.5% (FNV 2%, KK 0.5%)
172737	Boundary Cell Mining Claim	Active	Tuesday, April 10, 2018	Friday, November 12, 2021	(100) Strike Copper Corp.	200	0	2.5% (FNV 2%, KK 0.5%)
172738	Single Cell Mining Claim	Active	Tuesday, April 10, 2018	Friday, November 12, 2021	(100) Strike Copper Corp.	400	7532	2.5% (FNV 2%, KK 0.5%)
173476	Single Cell Mining Claim	Active	Tuesday, April 10, 2018	Friday, November 12, 2021	(100) Strike Copper Corp.	400	0	2.5% (FNV 2%, KK 0.5%)
173477	Single Cell Mining Claim	Active	Tuesday, April 10, 2018	Friday, November 12, 2021	(100) Strike Copper Corp.	400	0	2.5% (FNV 2%, KK 0.5%)
174912	Single Cell Mining Claim	Active	Tuesday, April 10, 2018	Friday, November 12, 2021	(100) Strike Copper Corp.	400	0	2.5% (FNV 2%, KK 0.5%)
177387	Single Cell Mining Claim	Active	Tuesday, April 10, 2018	Friday, November 12, 2021	(100) Strike Copper Corp.	400	0	3.5% (FNV 2%, KK 1.5%)
180887	Single Cell Mining Claim	Active	Tuesday, April 10, 2018	Friday, November 12, 2021	(100) Strike Copper Corp.	400	0	2.5% (FNV 2%, KK 0.5%)
180888	Single Cell Mining Claim	Active	Tuesday, April 10, 2018	Friday, November 12, 2021	(100) Strike Copper Corp.	400	0	2.5% (FNV 2%, KK 0.5%)
182164	Single Cell Mining Claim	Active	Tuesday, April 10, 2018	Friday, November 12, 2021	(100) Strike Copper Corp.	400	0	3.5% (FNV 2%, KK 1.5%)
182754	Single Cell Mining Claim	Active	Tuesday, April 10, 2018	Friday, November 12, 2021	(100) Strike Copper Corp.	400	0	2.5% (FNV 2%, KK 0.5%)
182755	Single Cell Mining Claim	Active	Tuesday, April 10, 2018	Friday, November 12, 2021	(100) Strike Copper Corp.	400	0	2.5% (FNV 2%, KK 0.5%)
184164	Single Cell Mining Claim	Active	Tuesday, April 10, 2018	Friday, November 12, 2021	(100) Strike Copper Corp.	400	0	2.5% (FNV 2%, KK 0.5%)
184165	Single Cell Mining Claim	Active	Tuesday, April 10, 2018	Friday, November 12, 2021	(100) Strike Copper Corp.	400	0	3.5% (FNV 2%, KK 1.5%)
184166	Single Cell Mining Claim	Active	Tuesday, April 10, 2018	Friday, November 12, 2021	(100) Strike Copper Corp.	400	0	3.5% (FNV 2%, KK 1.5%)
186390	Single Cell Mining Claim	Active	Tuesday, April 10, 2018	Friday, November 12, 2021	(100) Strike Copper Corp.	400	0	3.5% (FNV 2%, KK 1.5%)
186837	Single Cell Mining Claim	Active	Tuesday, April 10, 2018	Sunday, August 08, 2021	(100) Strike Copper Corp.	200	0	2.5% (FNV 2%, KK 0.5%)
186981	Single Cell Mining Claim	Active	Tuesday, April 10, 2018	Tuesday, May 18, 2021	(100) Strike Copper Corp.	400	0	2.5% (FNV 2%, KK 0.5%)
189037	Single Cell Mining Claim	Active	Tuesday, April 10, 2018	Friday, November 12, 2021	(100) Strike Copper Corp.	400	0	3.5% (FNV 2%, KK 1.5%)
189038	Single Cell Mining Claim	Active	Tuesday, April 10, 2018	Friday, November 12, 2021	(100) Strike Copper Corp.	400	0	3.5% (FNV 2%, KK 1.5%)
189039	Boundary Cell Mining Claim	Active	Tuesday, April 10, 2018	Friday, November 12, 2021	(100) Strike Copper Corp.	200	0	3.5% (FNV 2%, KK 1.5%)
189451	Single Cell Mining Claim	Active	Tuesday, April 10, 2018	Friday, November 12, 2021	(100) Strike Copper Corp.	400	0	3.5% (FNV 2%, KK 1.5%)
189699	Single Cell Mining Claim	Active	Tuesday, April 10, 2018	Friday, November 12, 2021	(100) Strike Copper Corp.	400	0	3.5% (FNV 2%, KK 1.5%)
190160	Boundary Cell Mining Claim	Active	Tuesday, April 10, 2018	Friday, November 12, 2021	(100) Strike Copper Corp.	200	0	2.5% (FNV 2%, KK 0.5%)

Cell_Num	Cell_Type	Tenure_Status	Issue_Date	Anniversary	Holder	Assessment Required	Assessment Reserve	Royalty
190161	Single Cell Mining Claim	Active	Tuesday, April 10, 2018	Friday, November 12, 2021	(100) Strike Copper Corp.	400	0	2.5% (FNV 2%, KK 0.5%)
190162	Single Cell Mining Claim	Active	Tuesday, April 10, 2018	Friday, November 12, 2021	(100) Strike Copper Corp.	400	0	2.5% (FNV 2%, KK 0.5%)
190893	Single Cell Mining Claim	Active	Tuesday, April 10, 2018	Friday, November 12, 2021	(100) Strike Copper Corp.	400	0	2.5% (FNV 2%, KK 0.5%)
192641	Single Cell Mining Claim	Active	Tuesday, April 10, 2018	Friday, November 12, 2021	(100) Strike Copper Corp.	400	0	3.5% (FNV 2%, KK 1.5%)
192642	Single Cell Mining Claim	Active	Tuesday, April 10, 2018	Friday, November 12, 2021	(100) Strike Copper Corp.	400	0	3.5% (FNV 2%, KK 1.5%)
192872	Boundary Cell Mining Claim	Active	Tuesday, April 10, 2018	Friday, November 12, 2021	(100) Strike Copper Corp.	200	0	2.5% (FNV 2%, KK 0.5%)
192994	Single Cell Mining Claim	Active	Tuesday, April 10, 2018	Friday, November 12, 2021	(100) Strike Copper Corp.	400	0	2.5% (FNV 2%, KK 0.5%)
193039	Single Cell Mining Claim	Active	Tuesday, April 10, 2018	Friday, November 12, 2021	(100) Strike Copper Corp.	400	0	3.5% (FNV 2%, KK 1.5%)
193615	Single Cell Mining Claim	Active	Tuesday, April 10, 2018	Friday, November 12, 2021	(100) Strike Copper Corp.	400	0	2.5% (FNV 2%, KK 0.5%)
193751	Boundary Cell Mining Claim	Active	Tuesday, April 10, 2018	Friday, November 12, 2021	(100) Strike Copper Corp.	200	0	2.5% (FNV 2%, KK 0.5%)
194403	Boundary Cell Mining Claim	Active	Tuesday, April 10, 2018	Friday, November 12, 2021	(100) Strike Copper Corp.	200	0	2.5% (FNV 2%, KK 0.5%)
194484	Single Cell Mining Claim	Active	Tuesday, April 10, 2018	Friday, November 12, 2021	(100) Strike Copper Corp.	400	0	3.5% (FNV 2%, KK 1.5%)
194730	Single Cell Mining Claim	Active	Tuesday, April 10, 2018	Friday, November 12, 2021	(100) Strike Copper Corp.	400	0	2.5% (FNV 2%, KK 0.5%)
195213	Boundary Cell Mining Claim	Active	Tuesday, April 10, 2018	Friday, November 12, 2021	(100) Strike Copper Corp.	200	0	2.5% (FNV 2%, KK 0.5%)
195345	Single Cell Mining Claim	Active	Tuesday, April 10, 2018	Friday, November 12, 2021	(100) Strike Copper Corp.	400	0	2.5% (FNV 2%, KK 0.5%)
197277	Boundary Cell Mining Claim	Active	Tuesday, April 10, 2018	Friday, November 12, 2021	(100) Strike Copper Corp.	200	0	3.5% (FNV 2%, KK 1.5%)
200532	Single Cell Mining Claim	Active	Tuesday, April 10, 2018	Friday, November 12, 2021	(100) Strike Copper Corp.	400	0	2.5% (FNV 2%, KK 0.5%)
200533	Single Cell Mining Claim	Active	Tuesday, April 10, 2018	Friday, November 12, 2021	(100) Strike Copper Corp.	400	0	2.5% (FNV 2%, KK 0.5%)
201606	Single Cell Mining Claim	Active	Tuesday, April 10, 2018	Friday, November 12, 2021	(100) Strike Copper Corp.	400	0	3.5% (FNV 2%, KK 1.5%)
201686	Single Cell Mining Claim	Active	Tuesday, April 10, 2018	Friday, November 12, 2021	(100) Strike Copper Corp.	400	0	2.5% (FNV 2%, KK 0.5%)
201730	Boundary Cell Mining Claim	Active	Tuesday, April 10, 2018	Friday, November 12, 2021	(100) Strike Copper Corp.	200	0	2.5% (FNV 2%, KK 0.5%)
201731	Single Cell Mining Claim	Active	Tuesday, April 10, 2018	Friday, November 12, 2021	(100) Strike Copper Corp.	400	0	3.5% (FNV 2%, KK 1.5%)
202402	Single Cell Mining Claim	Active	Tuesday, April 10, 2018	Friday, November 12, 2021	(100) Strike Copper Corp.	400	0	2.5% (FNV 2%, KK 0.5%)
202403	Single Cell Mining Claim	Active	Tuesday, April 10, 2018	Friday, November 12, 2021	(100) Strike Copper Corp.	400	0	3.5% (FNV 2%, KK 1.5%)
202404	Single Cell Mining Claim	Active	Tuesday, April 10, 2018	Friday, November 12, 2021	(100) Strike Copper Corp.	400	0	2.5% (FNV 2%, KK 0.5%)
203548	Single Cell Mining Claim	Active	Tuesday, April 10, 2018	Friday, November 12, 2021	(100) Strike Copper Corp.	400	0	2.5% (FNV 2%, KK 0.5%)
203549	Single Cell Mining Claim	Active	Tuesday, April 10, 2018	Friday, November 12, 2021	(100) Strike Copper Corp.	400	0	2.5% (FNV 2%, KK 0.5%)
207852	Single Cell Mining Claim	Active	Tuesday, April 10, 2018	Friday, November 12, 2021	(100) Strike Copper Corp.	400	0	2.5% (FNV 2%, KK 0.5%)

Cell_Num	Cell_Type	Tenure_Status	Issue_Date	Anniversary	Holder	Assessment Required	Assessment Reserve	Royalty
207853	Single Cell Mining Claim	Active	Tuesday, April 10, 2018	Friday, November 12, 2021	(100) Strike Copper Corp.	400	0	2.5% (FNV 2%, KK 0.5%)
207854	Single Cell Mining Claim	Active	Tuesday, April 10, 2018	Friday, November 12, 2021	(100) Strike Copper Corp.	400	0	2.5% (FNV 2%, KK 0.5%)
209212	Single Cell Mining Claim	Active	Tuesday, April 10, 2018	Friday, November 12, 2021	(100) Strike Copper Corp.	400	0	2.5% (FNV 2%, KK 0.5%)
209213	Single Cell Mining Claim	Active	Tuesday, April 10, 2018	Friday, November 12, 2021	(100) Strike Copper Corp.	400	0	2.5% (FNV 2%, KK 0.5%)
209975	Single Cell Mining Claim	Active	Tuesday, April 10, 2018	Friday, November 12, 2021	(100) Strike Copper Corp.	400	0	2.5% (FNV 2%, KK 0.5%)
210699	Single Cell Mining Claim	Active	Tuesday, April 10, 2018	Friday, May 07, 2021	(100) Strike Copper Corp.	400	0	3.5% (FNV 2%, KK 1.5%)
211302	Single Cell Mining Claim	Active	Tuesday, April 10, 2018	Friday, November 12, 2021	(100) Strike Copper Corp.	400	0	3.5% (FNV 2%, KK 1.5%)
211648	Single Cell Mining Claim	Active	Tuesday, April 10, 2018	Friday, November 12, 2021	(100) Strike Copper Corp.	400	0	2.5% (FNV 2%, KK 0.5%)
212452	Single Cell Mining Claim	Active	Tuesday, April 10, 2018	Friday, November 12, 2021	(100) Strike Copper Corp.	400	0	2.5% (FNV 2%, KK 0.5%)
212453	Single Cell Mining Claim	Active	Tuesday, April 10, 2018	Friday, November 12, 2021	(100) Strike Copper Corp.	400	0	2.5% (FNV 2%, KK 0.5%)
212936	Single Cell Mining Claim	Active	Tuesday, April 10, 2018	Friday, November 12, 2021	(100) Strike Copper Corp.	400	0	2.5% (FNV 2%, KK 0.5%)
213391	Single Cell Mining Claim	Active	Tuesday, April 10, 2018	Friday, November 12, 2021	(100) Strike Copper Corp.	400	0	2.5% (FNV 2%, KK 0.5%)
213392	Boundary Cell Mining Claim	Active	Tuesday, April 10, 2018	Friday, November 12, 2021	(100) Strike Copper Corp.	200	0	2.5% (FNV 2%, KK 0.5%)
218049	Single Cell Mining Claim	Active	Tuesday, April 10, 2018	Friday, November 12, 2021	(100) Strike Copper Corp.	400	0	2.5% (FNV 2%, KK 0.5%)
218050	Single Cell Mining Claim	Active	Tuesday, April 10, 2018	Friday, November 12, 2021	(100) Strike Copper Corp.	400	0	2.5% (FNV 2%, KK 0.5%)
218051	Single Cell Mining Claim	Active	Tuesday, April 10, 2018	Friday, November 12, 2021	(100) Strike Copper Corp.	400	0	3.5% (FNV 2%, KK 1.5%)
218821	Single Cell Mining Claim	Active	Tuesday, April 10, 2018	Friday, November 12, 2021	(100) Strike Copper Corp.	400	0	3.5% (FNV 2%, KK 1.5%)
218822	Single Cell Mining Claim	Active	Tuesday, April 10, 2018	Friday, November 12, 2021	(100) Strike Copper Corp.	400	0	3.5% (FNV 2%, KK 1.5%)
225415	Single Cell Mining Claim	Active	Tuesday, April 10, 2018	Friday, November 12, 2021	(100) Strike Copper Corp.	400	0	2.5% (FNV 2%, KK 0.5%)
226142	Single Cell Mining Claim	Active	Tuesday, April 10, 2018	Friday, May 07, 2021	(100) Strike Copper Corp.	400	0	3.5% (FNV 2%, KK 1.5%)
226143	Single Cell Mining Claim	Active	Tuesday, April 10, 2018	Friday, November 12, 2021	(100) Strike Copper Corp.	400	0	3.5% (FNV 2%, KK 1.5%)
226144	Single Cell Mining Claim	Active	Tuesday, April 10, 2018	Friday, November 12, 2021	(100) Strike Copper Corp.	400	0	3.5% (FNV 2%, KK 1.5%)
226847	Single Cell Mining Claim	Active	Tuesday, April 10, 2018	Friday, November 12, 2021	(100) Strike Copper Corp.	400	4062	2.5% (FNV 2%, KK 0.5%)
228183	Single Cell Mining Claim	Active	Tuesday, April 10, 2018	Friday, November 12, 2021	(100) Strike Copper Corp.	400	0	2.5% (FNV 2%, KK 0.5%)
232088	Boundary Cell Mining Claim	Active	Tuesday, April 10, 2018	Friday, November 12, 2021	(100) Strike Copper Corp.	200	0	2.5% (FNV 2%, KK 0.5%)
234645	Boundary Cell Mining Claim	Active	Tuesday, April 10, 2018	Sunday, August 08, 2021	(100) Strike Copper Corp.	200	0	2.5% (FNV 2%, KK 0.5%)
237705	Single Cell Mining Claim	Active	Tuesday, April 10, 2018	Friday, November 12, 2021	(100) Strike Copper Corp.	400	0	3.5% (FNV 2%, KK 1.5%)
237706	Single Cell Mining Claim	Active	Tuesday, April 10, 2018	Friday, November 12, 2021	(100) Strike Copper Corp.	400	0	3.5% (FNV 2%, KK 1.5%)

Cell_Num	Cell_Type	Tenure_Status	Issue_Date	Anniversary	Holder	Assessment Required	Assessment Reserve	Royalty
240521	Single Cell Mining Claim	Active	Tuesday, April 10, 2018	Friday, May 07, 2021	(100) Strike Copper Corp.	400	0	3.5% (FNV 2%, KK 1.5%)
241143	Single Cell Mining Claim	Active	Tuesday, April 10, 2018	Friday, November 12, 2021	(100) Strike Copper Corp.	400	0	3.5% (FNV 2%, KK 1.5%)
242356	Single Cell Mining Claim	Active	Tuesday, April 10, 2018	Friday, November 12, 2021	(100) Strike Copper Corp.	400	0	2.5% (FNV 2%, KK 0.5%)
244140	Single Cell Mining Claim	Active	Tuesday, April 10, 2018	Friday, November 12, 2021	(100) Strike Copper Corp.	400	0	2.5% (FNV 2%, KK 0.5%)
244141	Single Cell Mining Claim	Active	Tuesday, April 10, 2018	Friday, November 12, 2021	(100) Strike Copper Corp.	400	0	3.5% (FNV 2%, KK 1.5%)
246777	Single Cell Mining Claim	Active	Tuesday, April 10, 2018	Sunday, August 08, 2021	(100) Strike Copper Corp.	200	0	2.5% (FNV 2%, KK 0.5%)
247340	Single Cell Mining Claim	Active	Tuesday, April 10, 2018	Friday, November 12, 2021	(100) Strike Copper Corp.	400	0	3.5% (FNV 2%, KK 1.5%)
247577	Single Cell Mining Claim	Active	Tuesday, April 10, 2018	Friday, November 12, 2021	(100) Strike Copper Corp.	400	0	2.5% (FNV 2%, KK 0.5%)
247578	Single Cell Mining Claim	Active	Tuesday, April 10, 2018	Friday, November 12, 2021	(100) Strike Copper Corp.	400	0	2.5% (FNV 2%, KK 0.5%)
247579	Single Cell Mining Claim	Active	Tuesday, April 10, 2018	Friday, November 12, 2021	(100) Strike Copper Corp.	400	0	2.5% (FNV 2%, KK 0.5%)
249921	Boundary Cell Mining Claim	Active	Tuesday, April 10, 2018	Friday, November 12, 2021	(100) Strike Copper Corp.	200	0	3.5% (FNV 2%, KK 1.5%)
252465	Single Cell Mining Claim	Active	Tuesday, April 10, 2018	Friday, November 12, 2021	(100) Strike Copper Corp.	400	0	3.5% (FNV 2%, KK 1.5%)
254134	Single Cell Mining Claim	Active	Tuesday, April 10, 2018	Sunday, August 08, 2021	(100) Strike Copper Corp.	400	0	2.5% (FNV 2%, KK 0.5%)
254135	Single Cell Mining Claim	Active	Tuesday, April 10, 2018	Sunday, August 08, 2021	(100) Strike Copper Corp.	200	0	2.5% (FNV 2%, KK 0.5%)
254302	Single Cell Mining Claim	Active	Tuesday, April 10, 2018	Tuesday, May 18, 2021	(100) Strike Copper Corp.	400	0	3.5% (FNV 2%, KK 1.5%)
256383	Boundary Cell Mining Claim	Active	Tuesday, April 10, 2018	Friday, November 12, 2021	(100) Strike Copper Corp.	400	0	3.5% (FNV 2%, KK 1.5%)
256384	Single Cell Mining Claim	Active	Tuesday, April 10, 2018	Friday, November 12, 2021	(100) Strike Copper Corp.	400	0	3.5% (FNV 2%, KK 1.5%)
256581	Single Cell Mining Claim	Active	Tuesday, April 10, 2018	Friday, November 12, 2021	(100) Strike Copper Corp.	400	0	2.5% (FNV 2%, KK 0.5%)
256799	Single Cell Mining Claim	Active	Tuesday, April 10, 2018	Friday, November 12, 2021	(100) Strike Copper Corp.	400	0	2.5% (FNV 2%, KK 0.5%)
256916	Single Cell Mining Claim	Active	Tuesday, April 10, 2018	Friday, November 12, 2021	(100) Strike Copper Corp.	400	3931	2.5% (FNV 2%, KK 0.5%)
257041	Single Cell Mining Claim	Active	Tuesday, April 10, 2018	Friday, November 12, 2021	(100) Strike Copper Corp.	400	0	2.5% (FNV 2%, KK 0.5%)
257917	Single Cell Mining Claim	Active	Tuesday, April 10, 2018	Friday, November 12, 2021	(100) Strike Copper Corp.	400	0	2.5% (FNV 2%, KK 0.5%)
261323	Single Cell Mining Claim	Active	Tuesday, April 10, 2018	Friday, November 12, 2021	(100) Strike Copper Corp.	400	0	2.5% (FNV 2%, KK 0.5%)
262631	Boundary Cell Mining Claim	Active	Tuesday, April 10, 2018	Friday, November 12, 2021	(100) Strike Copper Corp.	200	0	3.5% (FNV 2%, KK 1.5%)
264038	Single Cell Mining Claim	Active	Tuesday, April 10, 2018	Friday, November 12, 2021	(100) Strike Copper Corp.	400	0	2.5% (FNV 2%, KK 0.5%)
265796	Single Cell Mining Claim	Active	Tuesday, April 10, 2018	Tuesday, May 18, 2021	(100) Strike Copper Corp.	400	0	3.5% (FNV 2%, KK 1.5%)
267135	Single Cell Mining Claim	Active	Tuesday, April 10, 2018	Friday, November 12, 2021	(100) Strike Copper Corp.	400	0	2.5% (FNV 2%, KK 0.5%)
267836	Boundary Cell Mining Claim	Active	Tuesday, April 10, 2018	Friday, November 12, 2021	(100) Strike Copper Corp.	200	0	3.5% (FNV 2%, KK 1.5%)

Cell_Num	Cell_Type	Tenure_Status	Issue_Date	Anniversary	Holder	Assessment Required	Assessment Reserve	Royalty
268119	Single Cell Mining Claim	Active	Tuesday, April 10, 2018	Friday, November 12, 2021	(100) Strike Copper Corp.	400	0	3.5% (FNV 2%, KK 1.5%)
268688	Single Cell Mining Claim	Active	Tuesday, April 10, 2018	Friday, November 12, 2021	(100) Strike Copper Corp.	400	0	2.5% (FNV 2%, KK 0.5%)
270008	Boundary Cell Mining Claim	Active	Tuesday, April 10, 2018	Friday, November 12, 2021	(100) Strike Copper Corp.	200	0	2.5% (FNV 2%, KK 0.5%)
273765	Single Cell Mining Claim	Active	Tuesday, April 10, 2018	Friday, November 12, 2021	(100) Strike Copper Corp.	400	0	2.5% (FNV 2%, KK 0.5%)
274447	Single Cell Mining Claim	Active	Tuesday, April 10, 2018	Friday, November 12, 2021	(100) Strike Copper Corp.	400	0	3.5% (FNV 2%, KK 1.5%)
275090	Single Cell Mining Claim	Active	Tuesday, April 10, 2018	Friday, November 12, 2021	(100) Strike Copper Corp.	400	0	3.5% (FNV 2%, KK 1.5%)
277292	Single Cell Mining Claim	Active	Tuesday, April 10, 2018	Friday, November 12, 2021	(100) Strike Copper Corp.	400	0	3.5% (FNV 2%, KK 1.5%)
278805	Single Cell Mining Claim	Active	Tuesday, April 10, 2018	Friday, November 12, 2021	(100) Strike Copper Corp.	400	0	2.5% (FNV 2%, KK 0.5%)
281440	Single Cell Mining Claim	Active	Tuesday, April 10, 2018	Tuesday, May 18, 2021	(100) Strike Copper Corp.	400	0	3.5% (FNV 2%, KK 1.5%)
285975	Single Cell Mining Claim	Active	Tuesday, April 10, 2018	Friday, November 12, 2021	(100) Strike Copper Corp.	400	0	2.5% (FNV 2%, KK 0.5%)
285976	Single Cell Mining Claim	Active	Tuesday, April 10, 2018	Friday, November 12, 2021	(100) Strike Copper Corp.	400	0	2.5% (FNV 2%, KK 0.5%)
286718	Single Cell Mining Claim	Active	Tuesday, April 10, 2018	Friday, November 12, 2021	(100) Strike Copper Corp.	400	0	2.5% (FNV 2%, KK 0.5%)
286719	Single Cell Mining Claim	Active	Tuesday, April 10, 2018	Friday, November 12, 2021	(100) Strike Copper Corp.	400	0	2.5% (FNV 2%, KK 0.5%)
288049	Single Cell Mining Claim	Active	Tuesday, April 10, 2018	Friday, November 12, 2021	(100) Strike Copper Corp.	400	0	3.5% (FNV 2%, KK 1.5%)
288665	Single Cell Mining Claim	Active	Tuesday, April 10, 2018	Friday, November 12, 2021	(100) Strike Copper Corp.	400	0	2.5% (FNV 2%, KK 0.5%)
288666	Single Cell Mining Claim	Active	Tuesday, April 10, 2018	Friday, November 12, 2021	(100) Strike Copper Corp.	400	0	2.5% (FNV 2%, KK 0.5%)
288667	Single Cell Mining Claim	Active	Tuesday, April 10, 2018	Friday, November 12, 2021	(100) Strike Copper Corp.	400	0	2.5% (FNV 2%, KK 0.5%)
290700	Single Cell Mining Claim	Active	Tuesday, April 10, 2018	Sunday, August 08, 2021	(100) Strike Copper Corp.	400	0	2.5% (FNV 2%, KK 0.5%)
291538	Single Cell Mining Claim	Active	Tuesday, April 10, 2018	Friday, November 12, 2021	(100) Strike Copper Corp.	400	0	2.5% (FNV 2%, KK 0.5%)
291539	Single Cell Mining Claim	Active	Tuesday, April 10, 2018	Friday, November 12, 2021	(100) Strike Copper Corp.	400	0	3.5% (FNV 2%, KK 1.5%)
292843	Single Cell Mining Claim	Active	Tuesday, April 10, 2018	Friday, November 12, 2021	(100) Strike Copper Corp.	400	0	2.5% (FNV 2%, KK 0.5%)
292844	Single Cell Mining Claim	Active	Tuesday, April 10, 2018	Friday, November 12, 2021	(100) Strike Copper Corp.	400	0	2.5% (FNV 2%, KK 0.5%)
293554	Single Cell Mining Claim	Active	Tuesday, April 10, 2018	Friday, November 12, 2021	(100) Strike Copper Corp.	400	0	2.5% (FNV 2%, KK 0.5%)
294728	Single Cell Mining Claim	Active	Tuesday, April 10, 2018	Friday, November 12, 2021	(100) Strike Copper Corp.	400	0	2.5% (FNV 2%, KK 0.5%)
294729	Single Cell Mining Claim	Active	Tuesday, April 10, 2018	Tuesday, May 18, 2021	(100) Strike Copper Corp.	400	0	2.5% (FNV 2%, KK 0.5%)
296060	Single Cell Mining Claim	Active	Tuesday, April 10, 2018	Friday, November 12, 2021	(100) Strike Copper Corp.	400	0	3.5% (FNV 2%, KK 1.5%)
296176	Single Cell Mining Claim	Active	Tuesday, April 10, 2018	Friday, November 12, 2021	(100) Strike Copper Corp.	400	0	2.5% (FNV 2%, KK 0.5%)
296177	Single Cell Mining Claim	Active	Tuesday, April 10, 2018	Friday, November 12, 2021	(100) Strike Copper Corp.	400	0	2.5% (FNV 2%, KK 0.5%)

Cell_Num	Cell_Type	Tenure_Status	Issue_Date	Anniversary	Holder	Assessment Required	Assessment Reserve	Royalty
298676	Single Cell Mining Claim	Active	Tuesday, April 10, 2018	Friday, November 12, 2021	(100) Strike Copper Corp.	400	0	3.5% (FNV 2%, KK 1.5%)
298677	Single Cell Mining Claim	Active	Tuesday, April 10, 2018	Friday, November 12, 2021	(100) Strike Copper Corp.	400	0	2.5% (FNV 2%, KK 0.5%)
300731	Single Cell Mining Claim	Active	Tuesday, April 10, 2018	Friday, November 12, 2021	(100) Strike Copper Corp.	400	0	3.5% (FNV 2%, KK 1.5%)
302354	Single Cell Mining Claim	Active	Tuesday, April 10, 2018	Tuesday, May 18, 2021	(100) Strike Copper Corp.	400	0	3.5% (FNV 2%, KK 1.5%)
302845	Single Cell Mining Claim	Active	Tuesday, April 10, 2018	Sunday, August 08, 2021	(100) Strike Copper Corp.	200	0	2.5% (FNV 2%, KK 0.5%)
302846	Single Cell Mining Claim	Active	Tuesday, April 10, 2018	Sunday, August 08, 2021	(100) Strike Copper Corp.	200	0	2.5% (FNV 2%, KK 0.5%)
303724	Single Cell Mining Claim	Active	Tuesday, April 10, 2018	Friday, November 12, 2021	(100) Strike Copper Corp.	400	0	2.5% (FNV 2%, KK 0.5%)
304958	Single Cell Mining Claim	Active	Tuesday, April 10, 2018	Friday, November 12, 2021	(100) Strike Copper Corp.	400	0	3.5% (FNV 2%, KK 1.5%)
304959	Single Cell Mining Claim	Active	Tuesday, April 10, 2018	Friday, November 12, 2021	(100) Strike Copper Corp.	400	0	3.5% (FNV 2%, KK 1.5%)
305610	Single Cell Mining Claim	Active	Tuesday, April 10, 2018	Friday, November 12, 2021	(100) Strike Copper Corp.	400	0	3.5% (FNV 2%, KK 1.5%)
305611	Single Cell Mining Claim	Active	Tuesday, April 10, 2018	Friday, November 12, 2021	(100) Strike Copper Corp.	400	0	2.5% (FNV 2%, KK 0.5%)
306482	Single Cell Mining Claim	Active	Tuesday, April 10, 2018	Friday, May 07, 2021	(100) Strike Copper Corp.	400	0	3.5% (FNV 2%, KK 1.5%)
306915	Single Cell Mining Claim	Active	Tuesday, April 10, 2018	Friday, November 12, 2021	(100) Strike Copper Corp.	400	0	3.5% (FNV 2%, KK 1.5%)
306916	Single Cell Mining Claim	Active	Tuesday, April 10, 2018	Friday, November 12, 2021	(100) Strike Copper Corp.	400	0	2.5% (FNV 2%, KK 0.5%)
306917	Single Cell Mining Claim	Active	Tuesday, April 10, 2018	Friday, November 12, 2021	(100) Strike Copper Corp.	400	0	2.5% (FNV 2%, KK 0.5%)
308604	Single Cell Mining Claim	Active	Tuesday, April 10, 2018	Friday, November 12, 2021	(100) Strike Copper Corp.	400	0	2.5% (FNV 2%, KK 0.5%)
308869	Boundary Cell Mining Claim	Active	Tuesday, April 10, 2018	Friday, November 12, 2021	(100) Strike Copper Corp.	200	0	2.5% (FNV 2%, KK 0.5%)
309206	Single Cell Mining Claim	Active	Tuesday, April 10, 2018	Friday, November 12, 2021	(100) Strike Copper Corp.	400	0	2.5% (FNV 2%, KK 0.5%)
309251	Single Cell Mining Claim	Active	Tuesday, April 10, 2018	Friday, November 12, 2021	(100) Strike Copper Corp.	400	0	2.5% (FNV 2%, KK 0.5%)
309698	Single Cell Mining Claim	Active	Tuesday, April 10, 2018	Friday, November 12, 2021	(100) Strike Copper Corp.	400	0	2.5% (FNV 2%, KK 0.5%)
311774	Single Cell Mining Claim	Active	Tuesday, April 10, 2018	Friday, November 12, 2021	(100) Strike Copper Corp.	400	0	3.5% (FNV 2%, KK 1.5%)
312188	Single Cell Mining Claim	Active	Tuesday, April 10, 2018	Friday, November 12, 2021	(100) Strike Copper Corp.	400	0	3.5% (FNV 2%, KK 1.5%)
312901	Single Cell Mining Claim	Active	Tuesday, April 10, 2018	Friday, November 12, 2021	(100) Strike Copper Corp.	400	0	2.5% (FNV 2%, KK 0.5%)
313617	Single Cell Mining Claim	Active	Tuesday, April 10, 2018	Friday, November 12, 2021	(100) Strike Copper Corp.	400	0	2.5% (FNV 2%, KK 0.5%)
313618	Single Cell Mining Claim	Active	Tuesday, April 10, 2018	Friday, November 12, 2021	(100) Strike Copper Corp.	400	0	2.5% (FNV 2%, KK 0.5%)
314986	Single Cell Mining Claim	Active	Tuesday, April 10, 2018	Friday, November 12, 2021	(100) Strike Copper Corp.	400	0	3.5% (FNV 2%, KK 1.5%)
315248	Single Cell Mining Claim	Active	Tuesday, April 10, 2018	Friday, November 12, 2021	(100) Strike Copper Corp.	400	0	3.5% (FNV 2%, KK 1.5%)
315605	Boundary Cell Mining Claim	Active	Tuesday, April 10, 2018	Friday, November 12, 2021	(100) Strike Copper Corp.	200	0	2.5% (FNV 2%, KK 0.5%)

Cell_Num	Cell_Type	Tenure_Status	Issue_Date	Anniversary	Holder	Assessment Required	Assessment Reserve	Royalty
315680	Single Cell Mining Claim	Active	Tuesday, April 10, 2018	Friday, November 12, 2021	(100) Strike Copper Corp.	400	0	3.5% (FNV 2%, KK 1.5%)
315681	Single Cell Mining Claim	Active	Tuesday, April 10, 2018	Friday, November 12, 2021	(100) Strike Copper Corp.	400	0	3.5% (FNV 2%, KK 1.5%)
319528	Single Cell Mining Claim	Active	Tuesday, April 10, 2018	Sunday, August 08, 2021	(100) Strike Copper Corp.	400	0	2.5% (FNV 2%, KK 0.5%)
319529	Single Cell Mining Claim	Active	Tuesday, April 10, 2018	Sunday, August 08, 2021	(100) Strike Copper Corp.	200	0	2.5% (FNV 2%, KK 0.5%)
320284	Single Cell Mining Claim	Active	Tuesday, April 10, 2018	Tuesday, May 18, 2021	(100) Strike Copper Corp.	400	0	3.5% (FNV 2%, KK 1.5%)
320285	Single Cell Mining Claim	Active	Tuesday, April 10, 2018	Tuesday, May 18, 2021	(100) Strike Copper Corp.	400	0	3.5% (FNV 2%, KK 1.5%)
326024	Single Cell Mining Claim	Active	Tuesday, April 10, 2018	Friday, May 07, 2021	(100) Strike Copper Corp.	400	0	3.5% (FNV 2%, KK 1.5%)
326644	Single Cell Mining Claim	Active	Tuesday, April 10, 2018	Friday, November 12, 2021	(100) Strike Copper Corp.	400	0	3.5% (FNV 2%, KK 1.5%)
327835	Single Cell Mining Claim	Active	Tuesday, April 10, 2018	Friday, November 12, 2021	(100) Strike Copper Corp.	400	0	2.5% (FNV 2%, KK 0.5%)
327891	Single Cell Mining Claim	Active	Tuesday, April 10, 2018	Friday, November 12, 2021	(100) Strike Copper Corp.	400	0	3.5% (FNV 2%, KK 1.5%)
328737	Single Cell Mining Claim	Active	Tuesday, April 10, 2018	Friday, November 12, 2021	(100) Strike Copper Corp.	400	0	2.5% (FNV 2%, KK 0.5%)
329840	Single Cell Mining Claim	Active	Tuesday, April 10, 2018	Friday, November 12, 2021	(100) Strike Copper Corp.	400	0	3.5% (FNV 2%, KK 1.5%)
331179	Boundary Cell Mining Claim	Active	Tuesday, April 10, 2018	Friday, November 12, 2021	(100) Strike Copper Corp.	200	0	3.5% (FNV 2%, KK 1.5%)
331501	Single Cell Mining Claim	Active	Tuesday, April 10, 2018	Friday, November 12, 2021	(100) Strike Copper Corp.	400	0	2.5% (FNV 2%, KK 0.5%)
331658	Single Cell Mining Claim	Active	Tuesday, April 10, 2018	Friday, November 12, 2021	(100) Strike Copper Corp.	400	0	3.5% (FNV 2%, KK 1.5%)
332110	Single Cell Mining Claim	Active	Tuesday, April 10, 2018	Friday, November 12, 2021	(100) Strike Copper Corp.	400	0	2.5% (FNV 2%, KK 0.5%)
332200	Single Cell Mining Claim	Active	Tuesday, April 10, 2018	Friday, November 12, 2021	(100) Strike Copper Corp.	400	0	2.5% (FNV 2%, KK 0.5%)
332201	Single Cell Mining Claim	Active	Tuesday, April 10, 2018	Friday, November 12, 2021	(100) Strike Copper Corp.	400	0	2.5% (FNV 2%, KK 0.5%)
332252	Single Cell Mining Claim	Active	Tuesday, April 10, 2018	Friday, November 12, 2021	(100) Strike Copper Corp.	400	0	2.5% (FNV 2%, KK 0.5%)
332679	Single Cell Mining Claim	Active	Tuesday, April 10, 2018	Friday, November 12, 2021	(100) Strike Copper Corp.	400	0	3.5% (FNV 2%, KK 1.5%)
333225	Single Cell Mining Claim	Active	Tuesday, April 10, 2018	Friday, November 12, 2021	(100) Strike Copper Corp.	400	0	2.5% (FNV 2%, KK 0.5%)
334680	Single Cell Mining Claim	Active	Tuesday, April 10, 2018	Friday, November 12, 2021	(100) Strike Copper Corp.	400	0	2.5% (FNV 2%, KK 0.5%)
336836	Single Cell Mining Claim	Active	Tuesday, April 10, 2018	Friday, May 07, 2021	(100) Strike Copper Corp.	400	0	3.5% (FNV 2%, KK 1.5%)
337719	Single Cell Mining Claim	Active	Tuesday, April 10, 2018	Friday, November 12, 2021	(100) Strike Copper Corp.	400	0	2.5% (FNV 2%, KK 0.5%)
341599	Boundary Cell Mining Claim	Active	Tuesday, April 10, 2018	Sunday, August 08, 2021	(100) Strike Copper Corp.	200	0	2.5% (FNV 2%, KK 0.5%)
341600	Boundary Cell Mining Claim	Active	Tuesday, April 10, 2018	Sunday, August 08, 2021	(100) Strike Copper Corp.	400	0	2.5% (FNV 2%, KK 0.5%)
342515	Single Cell Mining Claim	Active	Tuesday, April 10, 2018	Friday, November 12, 2021	(100) Strike Copper Corp.	400	0	2.5% (FNV 2%, KK 0.5%)
342516	Single Cell Mining Claim	Active	Tuesday, April 10, 2018	Friday, November 12, 2021	(100) Strike Copper Corp.	400	0	2.5% (FNV 2%, KK 0.5%)

Cell_Num	Cell_Type	Tenure_Status	Issue_Date	Anniversary	Holder	Assessment Required	Assessment Reserve	Royalty
343681	Single Cell Mining Claim	Active	Tuesday, April 10, 2018	Friday, November 12, 2021	(100) Strike Copper Corp.	400	0	3.5% (FNV 2%, KK 1.5%)
343682	Single Cell Mining Claim	Active	Tuesday, April 10, 2018	Friday, November 12, 2021	(100) Strike Copper Corp.	400	0	3.5% (FNV 2%, KK 1.5%)
343683	Single Cell Mining Claim	Active	Tuesday, April 10, 2018	Friday, November 12, 2021	(100) Strike Copper Corp.	400	0	3.5% (FNV 2%, KK 1.5%)
343891	Single Cell Mining Claim	Active	Tuesday, April 10, 2018	Friday, November 12, 2021	(100) Strike Copper Corp.	400	0	2.5% (FNV 2%, KK 0.5%)
344257	Single Cell Mining Claim	Active	Tuesday, April 10, 2018	Friday, November 12, 2021	(100) Strike Copper Corp.	400	0	2.5% (FNV 2%, KK 0.5%)
344381	Single Cell Mining Claim	Active	Tuesday, April 10, 2018	Friday, November 12, 2021	(100) Strike Copper Corp.	400	0	2.5% (FNV 2%, KK 0.5%)
530367	Single Cell Mining Claim	Active	Friday, August 31, 2018	Tuesday, August 31, 2021	(100) Strike Copper Corp.	400	0	2.5% (KK)
530368	Single Cell Mining Claim	Active	Friday, August 31, 2018	Tuesday, August 31, 2021	(100) Strike Copper Corp.	400	0	2.5% (KK)
530369	Single Cell Mining Claim	Active	Friday, August 31, 2018	Tuesday, August 31, 2021	(100) Strike Copper Corp.	400	0	2.5% (KK)
530370	Single Cell Mining Claim	Active	Friday, August 31, 2018	Tuesday, August 31, 2021	(100) Strike Copper Corp.	400	0	2.5% (KK)
530371	Single Cell Mining Claim	Active	Friday, August 31, 2018	Tuesday, August 31, 2021	(100) Strike Copper Corp.	400	0	2.5% (KK)
530372	Single Cell Mining Claim	Active	Friday, August 31, 2018	Tuesday, August 31, 2021	(100) Strike Copper Corp.	400	0	2.5% (KK)
530511	Single Cell Mining Claim	Active	Tuesday, September 04, 2018	Saturday, September 04, 2021	(100) Strike Copper Corp.	400	0	2.5% (КК)
530512	Single Cell Mining Claim	Active	Tuesday, September 04, 2018	Saturday, September 04, 2021	(100) Strike Copper Corp.	400	0	2.5% (KK)
530513	Single Cell Mining Claim	Active	Tuesday, September 04, 2018	Saturday, September 04, 2021	(100) Strike Copper Corp.	400	0	2.5% (КК)